



CLINTON CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

2267 N 1500 W Clinton, UT 84015

This meeting may be attended electronically by one or more members.

September 10, 2019

Mayor

L. Mitch Adams

City Council

TJ Mitchell

Barbara Patterson

Mike Petersen

Karen Peterson

Anna Stanton

I. REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 P.M.

1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Invocation or Thought
4. Roll Call

II. PUBLIC INPUT

1. Verbal Requests and Communications from the Audience.

Any public member desiring to address the Council shall, prior to the meeting, sign the “list to present” with the Clerk of the Council. They will be allowed up to three minutes to make their presentation. Please send requests to dcluff@clintoncity.com or call 801-614-0700. (The Council cannot take action on items not advertised according Utah State Code.)

III. BUSINESS

- A. Employee of the Month for August 2019- Jeremy Udink
- B. Consideration of Canceling September 24, 2019 City Council Meeting
- C. Review and Discussion of Proposed Personnel Policy Changes

IV. OTHER BUSINESS

- a. Approval of Minutes: August 27, 2019 CC Meeting
- b. Approval of Accounts Payable
- c. Planning Commission Report
- d. City Manager’s Report
- e. Mayor’s Report
- f. Council Reports on Areas of Responsibility
- g. Action Item Review

V. ADJOURN

Dennis W. Cluff

DENNIS W. CLUFFCITY RECORDER

If you attend this meeting and, due to a disability, will need assistance in understanding or participating therein, please notify the City at least eight hours prior to the meeting and we will seek to provide assistance. The order of agenda items may be changed or times accelerated as time permits with the exception of public hearings.

CLINTON CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Employee of the Month for August 2019- Jeremy Udink	AGENDA ITEM: A
PETITIONER: Dennis Cluff, Dave Williams	MEETING DATE: September 10, 2019
RECOMMENDATION: That Council recognize Jeremy Udink as Employee of the Month for August 2019.	ROLL CALL VOTE: NO
BACKGROUND: <p>Jeremy Udink has been with the City for over 16 years. He has worked on many different crews. He is certified in water, waste water and as a Road scholar. He now works on the water crew accomplishing important tasks. The start of each week he performs system checks on pressure, infrastructure and security of the water system.</p> <p>He is the one who marks the City's facilities for Bluestakes. He has a vast knowledge of all the lines in town. He works to keep the GIS map up to date. He watches as new lines are put in, taking photos and measurements to get precise locations. If you need to know the location of any line just ask Jeremy.</p> <p>Jeremy helps out with water leaks, shutoffs and other repairs but mostly works by himself and performs the maintenance on our hydrants and valves. We service 1/3 of all our hydrants and valves each year that is about 420 valves and 300 hydrants. This year he is incorporating electronic tracking maintenance records as these are more efficient and time saving and a quick reference in the field.</p> <p>Jeremy keeps track of valves so we don't lose them especially with construction projects, I can usually be assured that when needed a valve will be able to be found and in good working order.</p> <p>Jeremy is very dependable and willing to help out anyway he can. He helps out with other departments where needed. He is well liked by everyone and deserving of being the Employee of the month of August.</p>	
ATTACHMENTS:	

CLINTON CITY

Council Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Consideration of Canceling September 24 th Council Meeting	AGENDA ITEM: B
PETITIONER: Mayor Adams	MEETING DATE: September 10, 2019
RECOMMENDATION: That the Council consider canceling their September 24 th regular Council meeting.	ROLL CALL VOTE: NO
FISCAL IMPACT:	
BACKGROUND: Currently no items have been scheduled for Hearing or review by the Council for September 24 th . A key staff member for preparing the agendas will be gone that week which may make the minute taking of the Council meeting difficult. If an item of emergency or high priority emerges before the regular October 8 Council meeting, a Special Meeting can be called if desired by the Mayor and Council.	
ATTACHMENTS:	

CLINTON CITY

Council Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Review and Discussion of Proposed Personnel Policy Changes	AGENDA ITEM: C
PETITIONER: Dennis Cluff	MEETING DATE: September 10, 2019
RECOMMENDATION: That the Council review and discuss that proposed Personnel Policy changes and provide direction to staff	ROLL CALL VOTE: NO
FISCAL IMPACT:	
<p>BACKGROUND:</p> <p>Periodically we review the existing Personnel Policies and look for ways to improve and update them. There are many minor wording changes in this new version which are meant to help clarify the policies. Also a few new policies have been added dealing with dress and grooming, use of cell phones, use of public property (to comply with HB 163) and modified some areas of the blood alcohol testing to make the limit be the same in all of the policy's listed testing limit.</p> <p>Senior staff and the City Attorney have reviewed and helped modify some of these proposed changes. Council's input will be helpful.</p>	
ATTACHMENTS: New Personnel Policy Proposal	



CLINTON CITY

PERSONNEL POLICIES

Published by Order of the Clinton City Council
2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS	3
I. A WORD ABOUT THIS HANDBOOK	7
II. EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION	7
III. PURPOSE	7
IV. APPLICATION OF POLICIES	7
V. DEFINITION OF TERMS	9
VI. EMPLOYMENT POLICIES & INFORMATION	13
A. <i>EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY</i>	13
B. <i>POLICY AGAINST DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT</i>	13
C. <i>PERSONNEL RECORDS</i>	14
D. <i>OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT</i>	14
E. <i>POLITICAL ACTIVITY</i>	14
F. <i>ATTENDANCE</i>	15
G. <i>NEPOTISM</i>	15
H. <i>CONFIDENTIALITY</i>	15
I. <i>RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS</i>	15
J. <i>DRESS AND GROOMING POLICY</i>	15
1. <i>PURPOSE</i>	15
2. <i>POLICY</i>	16
3. <i>GUIDELINES</i>	16
VII. ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL PROGRAM	17
A. <i>ADMINISTRATION</i>	17
B. <i>PERSONNEL PROGRAM</i>	17
VIII. HIRING PROCEDURES	18
A. <i>VACANCIES/NEW POSITIONS</i>	18
B. <i>APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT</i>	18
C. <i>QUALIFICATION STANDARDS: NEW HIRES/PROMOTIONS</i>	18
D. <i>INTERVIEW BOARD</i>	18
IX. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT	19
A. <i>CLASSIFICATION OF NEW APPOINTMENTS/PROMOTIONS</i>	19
B. <i>PROBATIONARY PERIOD</i>	19
C. <i>PROMOTIONS</i>	19
D. <i>PROBATIONARY PROMOTIONS</i>	19
E. <i>LAYOFF</i>	20
F. <i>RESIGNATION</i>	20
G. <i>RE-EMPLOYMENT</i>	20
H. <i>TRANSFERS</i>	20
I. <i>EMPLOYEE EVALUATION</i>	20
J. <i>DRUG FREE WORKPLACE</i>	21
K. <i>WORK SCHEDULE</i>	21
L. <i>FLEX TIME</i>	21
M. <i>LUNCH AND REST PERIODS</i>	21
N. <i>SAFETY RULES AND ACCIDENT REPORTS</i>	21
O. <i>PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES</i>	22
X. COMPENSATION	23

A.	PAY PLAN	23
B.	CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION	23
C.	SALARY INCREASES	24
D.	MERIT SALARY RANGE STEP INCREASES	24
E.	SERVICE AWARDS	24
F.	NON-DISCIPLINARY DEMOTION	24
G.	RECLASSIFICATION	24
H.	PAY PERIODS AND DAYS	24
XI.	OVERTIME	25
A.	POLICY	25
B.	COMPENSATION	25
C.	COMPENSATORY TIME OFF	25
D.	FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT	25
E.	PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES	25
F.	POLICE COURT DUTY	26
XII.	HOLIDAYS	27
XIII.	VACATIONS	29
XIV.	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	31
A.	SICK LEAVE WITH PAY	31
B.	EXCEPTIONS TO SICK LEAVE WITH PAY	31
C.	SICK LEAVE WITHOUT PAY	32
D.	FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE	32
E.	MATERNITY LEAVE	33
F.	MILITARY LEAVE	33
G.	MISCELLANEOUS LEAVE WITH PAY	34
H.	LEAVE WITHOUT PAY	34
XV.	BENEFITS	35
A.	HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE	35
B.	LIFE INSURANCE	35
C.	RETIREMENT	35
D.	UTAH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH	35
E.	CONFERENCES & CONVENTIONS	36
F.	TRAVEL EXPENSE	36
G.	EDUCATIONAL AND TRAINING AID	37
H.	PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS	37
XVI.	STANDARDS OF CONDUCT	39
XVII.	DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES	41
A.	"ORAL WARNING":	41
B.	"WRITTEN WARNING":	41
C.	"SUSPENSION":	41
D.	"SALARY REDUCTION":	42
E.	"DEMOTION"	42
F.	"DISMISSAL":	42
G.	"DUE PROCESS INTERVIEW":	42
XVIII.	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	44
A.	APPEALS	44
B.	APPEAL BOARD	44
C.	TIMELINESS DEFENSES	45
XIX.	MISCELLANEOUS POLICIES	46

A.	DEATH PAYMENT	46
B.	USE OF CITY VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT	46
C.	ELECTRONIC MAIL AND COMPUTER SYSTEMS	46
D.	CELLULAR TELEPHONES	47
XX.	SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND DRUG FREE WORKPLACE	49
A.	PURPOSE	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
B.	PROGRAM	49
C.	TRAINING OF EMPLOYEES	49
D.	VOLUNTARY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE AND/OR ALCOHOL REHABILITATION	49
E.	MEDICALLY AUTHORIZED DRUGS	50
F.	DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING	50
G.	DEFINITIONS	51
A.	PROHIBITIONS	52
B.	TESTING	53
C.	EMPLOYEE RIGHTS	53
XXI.	SAVING CLAUSE	55
XXII.	ADOPTION OF POLICIES	55

I. A WORD ABOUT THIS HANDBOOK

Communications is the most important aspect of the employment relationship. This handbook is designed as part of our effort to improve your understanding of what we expect of you as an employee. It also outlines your benefits as a City employee. This personnel policy is not a contract of employment. However, to the extent an employee wishes to remain or be employed by Clinton City, these are the basic policies that must be followed.

Your daily contact with the public has two effects: **First**, the perception the public gains from your appearance and behavior which reflects on your City as an employer; **Second**, what you see and hear can be very useful to us in improving the public's perception of the City, and are important in helping us serve the citizens of the City.

Improving the public perception of the services we provide and how well we provide them, in the long term, allows us to better compensate you for the part you play in getting the job done. Serving the public and getting the job done right should be the ultimate goals all of us are striving to achieve.

Please read this handbook with this idea in mind: It is a synopsis of our mutual expectations. As such, it cannot anticipate every situation that might arise while you work here. However, it does address the most common issues where questions have been raised in the past. Should you not understand a specific portion or reference in this handbook, contact your supervisor.

II. EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION

New employees will be provided with an orientation session during which they will be given a copy of this handbook and the opportunity to ask questions they may have concerning its contents or application. Current employees will also be given an orientation to this handbook, or any subsequent modification to it, required by changes in applicable laws or regulations, or by subsequent action of the City Council.

III. PURPOSE

The purpose of these policies is to provide systematic and equitable procedures and regulations relating to the hiring, compensation, hours of work, leave, safety, training, working conditions, promotions, transfer, discipline, removal and other matters affecting the status of employees of the City. These rules and regulations are provided to maintain and improve the facilities and services which the residents of the City require, to maintain uniformity and equity in personnel matters which will make City service attractive as a career and to encourage each employee to give his/her best service to the City. Individual departments may have additional policies approved by the City Manager specific to their function; department policies shall not supersede the policies outlined in this handbook.

IV. APPLICATION OF POLICIES

These personnel rules, policies and procedures apply to all City employees, except in the event of a conflict between these policies and any valid collective bargaining unit contract, City ordinance, state or federal law.

The City specifically reserves the right to modify or amend these policies at any time, with or without notice. In the event of the amendment of any ordinance, rule or law incorporated in this document or upon which these provisions rely, these policies will be deemed amended in conformance with those changes.

V. DEFINITION OF TERMS

As used in these rules, unless the context requires otherwise:

Anniversary Date:

The date marking the end of the probationary period of an employee after being appointed, promoted or reclassified to a position of employment as a regular employee.

Appointing Authority:

Any person or group vested with the authority to employ, discipline or terminate an employee in a position in City service. This definition includes all Elected Officials, Appointed Officials and Department Directors given such authority by the City Council or City Manager.

Department Directors:

Supervising Managers of City departments. They are employed or terminated through the City Manager with approval of the Mayor and City Council. They are supervised, directed, disciplined (except for termination) and evaluated by the City Manager. Department Directors direct and supervise the employee activity and services provided within their respective departments. They are allowed to employ, discipline or terminate an employee with approval of the City Manager.

Disciplinary Probation:

A period of time defined by the employee's appointing authority, which shall not be less than 30 days nor more than one (1) year for violation of these policies, city ordinances, or state law.

Employee:

A person employed by the City in one of the following categories:

Probationary Employee, Regular Full-time Employee, Regular Part-time Employee or Regular Part-time Employee Exempted Probationary Promotion Employee, or Temporary/Seasonal Employee.

All persons employed by the City are "at will" employees.

Fair Labor Standards Act:

Federal law establishing requirements relating to minimum wage salary classifications, overtime compensation, child labor and equal pay requirements. It also identifies certain employee classifications which may be declared exempt from overtime and minimum wage laws (for Clinton City these are executive, administrative and professional employees who qualify.)

Governing Body:

The Mayor and Clinton City Council.

Illegal Act:

Acts which violate law **whether** federal, state or local.

Immediate Family:

Shall include the employee's spouse, children (adopted or natural), parents, **siblings, grandparents, mother/father** in laws (**spouse's parents, brothers, sisters siblings and grandparents**), or other dependents living in the employee's household.

Lay-off:

Termination due to a shortage of funds, materials, work or for involuntary reasons not reflecting discredit upon the performance of the employee.

Lay-off List:

A list of laid off regular employees in a particular Class of job who are entitled to be reappointed to a position in that Class, setting forth the effective date of lay-off, and establishing an order of re-call. **for future job openings. This list is only good for three (3) months after the lay-off effective date.**

Military Leave:

A leave of temporary absence granted to employee(s) while serving in the US Armed Forces, Reserves, or the National Guard.

Personnel Action:

Any action taken with reference to an employee or position.

Position:

Defines a group of duties within a work classification requiring a full-time or part-time employee to accomplish the specified duties.

Position Vacancy:

A position which becomes vacant when a current employee has been promoted, voluntarily or involuntarily demoted, resigned, terminated, or has retired.

Probation:

Normally a period of time not less than six (6) **contiguous** months and not more than one (1) year (**12 contiguous months**), during which new employees are required to demonstrate by actual performance their fitness for the regular full-time position or regular part-time position to which appointed, promoted, or hired.

Probationary Promotion:

Normally a period of not less than six (6) **contiguous** months or more than one (1) year (**12 contiguous months**), during which a promoted employee is required to demonstrate, by actual performance, fitness for the position to which promoted.

Promotion:

Movement of an employee from a position in one classification to a position in a higher classification.

Reclassification:

Change in job status due to certain changed job requirements.

Regular Full-time Employee:

An employee who has been appointed or hired to a full-time position established in the annual budget, following satisfactory completion of the probationary period, who regularly works forty (40) hour weeks.

Regular Part-time Employee:

Employee who after satisfactory completion of the probationary period, holds a part-time position that is established in the annual budget and these rules, and normally works regular weekly hours of twenty (20) hours or more, but less than thirty (30) hours per week.

Regular Part-time Employee Exempted:

An employee who following satisfactory completion of the probation period, works greater than thirty (30) hours, but less than forty (40) hours per week and has been declared exempt from the requirements of the Affordable Health Care Act by the City Manager.

Supervisor:

Includes any person responsible for assigning tasks to and evaluating the performance of an employee, and who may, with the concurrence of the Appointing Authority, discipline, ~~suspend or terminate~~ an employee.

Suspension (Administrative):

A temporary interruption in work of an employee directed by the Appointing Authority for investigative reasons. During this period the employee will be paid. Administrative suspension periods normally shall not exceed ten (10) days. Employee benefits will not be affected during the suspension period.

Suspension (Disciplinary):

Temporary interruption of work of an employee directed by the Appointing Authority for disciplinary reasons. During this period the employee shall not be paid. The disciplinary suspension period shall not exceed thirty (30) calendar days.

Temporary/Seasonal Employees:

These employees are normally hired for a defined project and/or limited time frame, typically for less than ~~nine (9)~~ **eight (8)** consecutive months **in any given "look back" 12 month period**. These employees are not eligible for benefits unless required by law. They shall be covered by Worker's Compensation and shall be compensated for overtime hours at one and one-half times

the normal hourly rate for the position held. Employment of temporary/seasonal employees beyond an initially specified term does not imply or constitute an employment status change. These employees are considered “at will” employees subject to termination without cause.

Transfer:

Movement of an employee from a specifically described position of employment and pay level in one department or division, to a similar described position and same pay level in another department or division.

Voluntary Demotion:

A demotion requested by an employee in order to retain employment when a layoff is imminent or for other reasons, when the action is entirely voluntary on the part of the employee.

Volunteer Employee:

An individual who performs a service for the City that is humanitarian or civic in nature, done for the worker's private reasons, and the volunteer does not expect to be paid, nor is the volunteer paid. Employees of the City may not volunteer to do the same work that they normally do in their paid positions.

Work Week:

A basic full-time work week is 40 hours of work on 5 consecutive 8-hour days. The standard work period commences at 12:01 a.m. Sunday and ends midnight the following Saturday. With City Manager approval, Departments (i.e. Fire and Police) may establish other work week schedules or work arrangements to meet their requirements.

VI. EMPLOYMENT POLICIES & INFORMATION

A. *EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY*

Equal employment opportunity at the City is defined as a policy of approaching all employment related decisions based on the skills, experience, education, and demonstrable ability to perform the essential tasks of the position being offered, without reference to age, sex, race, color, religion, national origin, or disability.

Employment applications, job descriptions, advertising (internal or external), and interviews for job openings will be confined to whether the applicant can perform particular job functions. Based on the responses received, should it appear that an applicant might have difficulty with an essential function of the job, due to a disability as defined by law, the City will seek to provide reasonable accommodation, in cooperation with the applicant, on a case by case basis. Should a current employee suffer a disability as defined by law, reasonable accommodation, including reassignment to a vacant position for which the employee is fully qualified, will be made.

An offer of employment requires the applicant to first pass a pre-employment drug screen and take an appropriate medical examination, if required. Information obtained as a result of medical examination will be limited to job related inquiries, specific physical job requirements, consistent with business necessity and maintained in a confidential file.

It is the intent of the City to apply these policies to all employment practices, including, but not limited to: job applications and testing; hiring; termination; advancement; promotion; tenure; compensation; training; recruitment; advertising of job openings; layoff and recall; leaves of absence; fringe benefits; and all other employment related activities.

Any violation of this policy should immediately be brought to the attention of the City Manager who will institute an appropriate investigation as deemed necessary to substantiate the facts surrounding the alleged violation. Based on this information, disciplinary action to correct the violation will be taken as indicated by the facts of the case, and a written record will be maintained containing the results of the investigation

B. *POLICY AGAINST DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT*

It is the intent of the City to provide a work environment that is free from unlawful discrimination and harassment. Unlawful harassment includes undesired harassment based on race, gender, religion, national origin, age, disability, marital status, and any other basis prohibited by law. Unlawful harassment in the workplace on the part of any employee is prohibited and any employee found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to disciplinary action.

It is the intent of the City to apply these policies to all employment related practices, including, but not limited to: job application procedures and testing; hiring; promotion; demotion; termination; tenure; compensation; training; recruitment; advertising of job openings; lay-off and recall; leaves of absence; fringe benefits; and all other employment related activities.

An employee who believes he/she is the subject of unlawful harassment should report the complaint to his/her Department Director, who will take it to the City Manager, or if the complaint is against the Department Director, the employee shall report the complaint to the City Manager, unless the complaint is against the City Manager or Municipal Judge, then the employee should notify the Mayor or a City Council member, who will immediately institute an appropriate investigation as deemed necessary to substantiate the facts surrounding the alleged violation.

Based upon this information, disciplinary action to correct the alleged violation will be taken as indicated by the facts of the case, and a written record will be maintained containing the results of the investigation. Falsification of a complaint shall be grounds for disciplinary action.

Retaliation by an employee's supervisor or another employee for filing a complaint alleging unlawful harassment will not be tolerated and will subject the retaliators to disciplinary action.

C. PERSONNEL RECORDS

Each City employee will have an official personnel file which will be maintained by the City. The file shall contain:

Employee's name, title, job description, department assigned, current salary, change in employment status, training received, evaluations, disciplinary actions, and other such information as may be considered pertinent.

All employee records shall be considered "CONFIDENTIAL". Employee records will be accessible only to the employee; the Employee's Supervisor, the City Manager or the City Manager's authorized designee, in performance of their duties with the City.

All Medical files created as a result of employment offers will be maintained in a CONFIDENTIAL file, and only be used for purposes of determining physical fitness for the performance of essential functions of a specific job sought either as initial or promotional employment. (Also see XXI.C.1)

No information from the personnel file shall be released to outside parties except with the prior written authorization of the employee, or by order of appropriate legal authority.

Generally, public records are available for public inspection. The Government Records Access and Management Act, in the Utah Code, outlines the specific material that is exempted from public disclosure (see Utah Code Title 63G, Chapter 2). This exemption includes most of the material in an employee's personnel file unless a public need is shown for its disclosure.

Personnel records are controlled by the City Manager. ~~and Requests to review records must be made in writing on GRAMA request forms to the GRAMA Records Officer. to him/her.~~ Requests to review records must be made in writing on GRAMA request forms to the GRAMA Records Officer.

D. OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

No full-time City employee shall accept outside employment, whether part-time, temporary or permanent, without prior written notice of the proposed employment, employer, and hours of employment to, and the approval of, his ~~immediate supervisor~~ **Department Director** and the City Manager. Such approval will be conveyed in writing back to the employee. It is understood that the City may, at any time, revoke permission to hold outside employment.

In order to be approved, the outside employment must:

1. In no way detract from the efficiency of the employee in his/her work for the City;
2. In no way conflict with the interest of the City or be a discredit to the City; and,
3. Not take preference over extra work required by City employment.

Copy of the request, whether approved or not, shall be placed in the employee's personnel file together with the final disposition.

E. POLITICAL ACTIVITY

It is the policy of the City that employees of the City shall not simultaneously hold an elective municipal office with the City. Any employee running for a Clinton City elected office, and winning that election, must resign from City employment prior to taking the oath of office.

The restrictions imposed by the law of the State of Utah on political activities are that no city employee shall use such employment to solicit any money, influence, service or other thing of value, or otherwise aid or promote any political committee, or the nomination or election of any person to public office, while on the job during working hours. However, nothing in this section is intended to restrict the right of a public employee, outside the hours of employment, to campaign, express his/her personal political views, support candidates/ballot issues, hold a political office in a different jurisdiction or to vote in any election.

F. ATTENDANCE

Employees are hired for specific job performances and services. Employees are expected to work a complete designated work day. If an employee, for some unavoidable reason, cannot report for work, he/she is expected to notify the appropriate supervisor as soon as possible, but no later than ½ hour after the scheduled reporting time. Employees in emergency services must notify their supervisor of an impending absence as far in advance as possible of the beginning of their shift. **Permission to leave work early must be acquired from the Department Supervisor, Director or from the City Manager if no one else in authority is available.**

An employee who is absent from work for three (3) consecutive working days without authorization will be considered to have abandoned his/her job as of the last day of active employment and will be declared to have voluntarily quit, unless the City **Manager** determines the absence was due to an unavoidable situation and the employee was unable to contact the City due to circumstances beyond the employee's control.

An employee is responsible for correct reporting of hours worked, on bi-weekly time sheets. Supervisors are responsible for verification of employee time worked.

Because of overtime requirements, non-exempt (FLSA) employees should not begin work early or leave late without prior approval of their supervisor. **Any extra work time (i.e. work through lunch or break or work extra hours) must first be approved by the Department Supervisor, Director or City Manager.**

G. NEPOTISM

The City shall adhere to the provisions of Utah State Code 52-3. Members of the fire department are exempt from these provisions if they are non-full-time or on-call employees. The provisions of this section shall apply to promotion, demotion, transfer, reinstatement, and new appointment/hire, but shall not be construed retroactively to affect situations of employment in effect prior to the enactment of this section.

H. CONFIDENTIALITY

All information relating to personal or private matters, gained by employees as a result of the confidence placed in them as City employees by the public, is to be treated as confidential, unless specifically designated otherwise. Discussions involving such matters should always be confined to those who have a "need to know" based on related City services required by the confidential matter.

I. RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS

Employees are encouraged to live within the City Limits. However, residency will not be a condition of employment or continued employment.

For Public Works employees while on stand-by duty, consumption of alcoholic beverages, illegal drugs or incapacitating prescription drugs is forbidden. The employee shall maintain the capability to respond to an off-hour or holiday emergency within 30 minutes of receiving the call.

J. DRESS AND GROOMING

1. PURPOSE

Clinton City has established this policy to broadly define dress and grooming guidelines to promote a consistent, professional image, while promoting confidence and comfort for employees. **With approval of the City Manager, individual departments may establish more restrictive guidelines to meet department or job specific needs.**

2. POLICY

Clinton City employees are expected to maintain a professional appearance and a level of personal grooming and cleanliness appropriate for their position. Employees should avoid attire, hairstyles, jewelry or other personal accessories that interfere with job performance or safety, or attract undue attention or create an extreme appearance. Employees are expected to use common sense and good judgment in their dress attire and grooming. Police officers assigned to work in undercover operations may be exempted from this policy by the Police Chief.

3. GUIDELINES

a) Personal Hygiene

- 1) Employees are expected to be neatly groomed and free from body odor. Employees should be considerate of co-workers and the public who may be sensitive to strong fragrance and wear little or no fragrance or use other strong scents in their work place.

b) Hair

- 1) Hair on the head should be kept neat and clean. Hair should be of a natural color.
- 2) Facial hair is generally permitted when kept neatly trimmed, check with your Department Director.

c) Jewelry, Makeup and Accessories

- 1) Male employees may not wear during work hours: earrings, ear gauges, facial jewelry, necklaces, bracelets that may impede work, makeup or fingernail polish.
- 2) For all employees, visible facial jewelry (forward of the ears) is not permitted during work hours and must be removed.

d) Tattoos

- 1) Non-cosmetic facial tattoos, other exposed body tattoos and/or applied visible markings that may be perceived as offensive are not permitted. Exceptions may be made at the discretion of the Department Director. If allowed, the tattoos or markings must be covered up as much as possible during working hours.

e) Attire

- 1) Attire should be clean and appropriate for the work to be performed.
- 2) Examples of unacceptable attire include, but are not limited to:
 - a. Ripped, frayed or torn clothing;
 - b. Excessively short, tight or revealing clothing;
 - c. Pajama type clothing;
 - d. Exposed midriff/tops;
 - e. Visible undergarments;
 - f. Spaghetti strap tops without a shirt or blouse underneath;
 - g. Tank tops or muscle shirts;
 - h. Tube tops;
 - i. Shorts (except when permitted by department policy);
 - j. Pants that are excessively baggy or hanging below the waist;
 - k. Strapless or backless dresses;
 - l. Flip flops or house slippers;
 - m. Bare feet;
 - n. Shirts and caps with designs, pictures or writing which could be deemed offensive, sexual, demeaning, political or of a marketing nature.

f) Failure to meet policy

Employees failing to meet these guidelines may be asked to clock out and leave the workplace. Continued violation will result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

g) Exceptions and Appeals

- 1) Exceptions to this policy will be considered for those employees who, due to a religious belief or medical situation, are unable to comply with those sections as long as the employee's safety is not compromised.
- 2) Appeals to this policy may be made in accordance with policy XVIII.B.

VII. ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL PROGRAM

A. ADMINISTRATION

Officers of the City shall be the City Manager/Recorder, **City Treasurer**, City Engineer, and City Attorney, all of whom shall be appointed by the Mayor with the ratification of the City Council. Department Directors shall be appointed by the City Manager with City Council approval.

Employees are defined as all other persons hired by the City whether on a regular or temporary basis.

As authorized by the City Manager, Department Directors may have the right to hire and terminate employees within their own departments subject to budgeting limitations placed on the departments by the City Council and subject to such other limitations as are contained in this manual.

The City Manager will serve as the appellate board for all personnel issues, except as stated in the next paragraph and in occasions when he/she is acting in the capacity of the first line supervisor. In such cases the Mayor and City Council will act as the appellate board.

As outlined in Utah Code 10-3-1106, an ~~appeals board~~ **Appeals Hearing Officer** will be ~~established~~ **appointed** as needed to review written appeals of discharged or disciplinary ~~transferred~~ **demoted** employees. The decision of the ~~appeals board~~ **Appeals Hearing Officer** may be **further** appealed to the City Council. (See Appeals ~~Board~~ **Hearing Officer**, XVIII.B)

B. PERSONNEL PROGRAM

The personnel program established by this plan shall be administered by the City Manager. The City Manager shall:

Prepare the job classification and pay plan, compensation survey fringe benefits and amendments and revisions to this plan for Council adoption;

Administer all provisions of the personnel program;

Advise Department Directors on interpretations of provisions of the plan and assist in personnel administration in each department; and,

Advise the City Council on the need for changes or amendments to the plan.

VIII. HIRING PROCEDURES

A. VACANCIES/NEW POSITIONS

Vacant or new City positions may be filled by a transfer or promotion of a current City employee, or by recruitment of a new employee. When it is determined by the City Manager that a position needs to be filled, the Department Director will be authorized to recruit, test, and select an individual for the position after coordination and final approval by the City Manager.

The City Manager will decide the mode of filling the vacant position, whether to promote, to recruit first from qualified current employees and/or qualified former employees, or to open the vacant position to the **general** public by posting the announcement in a local city newspaper and by other such methods. Such an announcement shall specify: the title and salary range; the date of closing for the acceptance of applications; the nature of the work to be performed; education and experience required; and any other pertinent information.

B. APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT

Application forms **can be found on the City website** or will be furnished by the City Treasurer to all applicants. A **properly filled and signed application form and a resume** must be on file for each person considered for the position. ~~Resumes may be included with the application form.~~

C. QUALIFICATION STANDARDS: NEW HIRES/PROMOTIONS

All qualified applications will be reviewed by the hiring Department Director, keeping in mind the essential functions of the job, the applicant's education, experience and other qualifications.

Qualifications of an applicant for a position in City Service shall be ascertained on the basis of one or more of the following:

Information contained on the application form, **resume and any other submitted information**;

Written, performance, physical tests, or any combination thereof;

Qualifications required for certification under State Law;

Oral interview process;

Background checks (includes previous employment, driving, criminal and personal reference checks);

Other requirements as specified by the governing body of the City in the position description; and,

Any examinations required for various positions will be administered by the Department Director in consultation with the City Manager.

D. INTERVIEW BOARD

An oral interview board may be appointed by the City Manager for the purpose of interviewing applicants. The interview board may consist of the following:

The relevant Department Director;

The City Manager or designee;

Other qualified persons designated by the City Manager.

IX. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

A. CLASSIFICATION OF NEW APPOINTMENTS/PROMOTIONS

All Clinton City employees are hired under the Utah "at will" law. All new or promoted employees are subject to a probationary period as outlined in subsection B. Normally new employees are hired at the first step (probationary step) of the pay plan for their classification. However, in instances where a new or promoted employee has experience or skills which are above those required for the position, it is possible to hire in above the minimum salary with City Manager approval.

B. PROBATIONARY PERIOD

The probationary period shall normally be six (6) consecutive full months of employment, but no longer the one (1) year (12 consecutive full months). A shorter probationary period may be established at the time of employment or thereafter with the written approval of the City Manager. Probationary employees are not entitled to use Articles XIII, XVII and XVIII of this policy (Vacation, Disciplinary and Grievance).

The work and conduct of probationary employees shall be subject to close scrutiny and evaluation, and if found to be below standards of acceptability, the Department Director may remove or demote the probationer at any time during the probationary period. Such removals or demotions shall not be subject to appeal.

A satisfactory rating on a written performance evaluation will be required to establish the end of the probationary period. Upon the successful completion of the probationary period this completion date shall become the anniversary date. Annual merit increases shall be considered thereafter on this anniversary date of each succeeding fiscal year, but may be limited by annual budget constraints.

During the original appointment probationary period, the employee will not be eligible for vacation leave but will earn vacation credit usable after successful completion of the probationary period. Employees terminated prior to the completion of such probation will not be paid for accrued vacation time. Probationary employees may be allowed to use accumulated sick leave, as may be approved by their Department Director. Any request for administrative leave needs to be approved by the City Manager.

C. PROMOTIONS

To be eligible for promotion, an employee must meet minimum requirements of the higher level position and must have a current satisfactory performance rating in the present position. Final decisions whether to promote a current employee or hire outside the City services to fill vacant positions rests with the City Manager.

Promotions may be granted by the City Manager on recommendation of the Department Director where an employee has demonstrated performance above and beyond requirements of the job and performance of other employees.

A promotion may take place whenever an employee moves from one job classification into another job classification at a higher grade. When an employee is so promoted, he shall be entitled to the step in the higher grade that represents an increase over the salary range previously received in the lower grade. In accordance with the City Manager's decision, an opportunity to apply for any available promotional opportunity may first be offered to qualified regular employees within the City before new applicants will be considered. Promotions to Department Director positions require City Council approval.

D. PROBATIONARY PROMOTIONS

Following a promotion, a full time/regular employee shall be in a probationary period for not less than six (6) consecutive full months of employment, but no longer the one (1) year (12 consecutive full months), at the discretion of the City Manager. During that period such employee's vacation and sick leave, and all other benefits will accrue and can be used the same as prior to the promotion. The employee will be evaluated on his/her performance in the promoted position, the same as a new

appointment/hire. In the event probation is not satisfactorily completed in the opinion of the Appointing Authority, and upon notice of termination being given, the employee in a promoted position will have the right to appeal.

E. LAYOFF

A Department Director, with the concurrence of the City Manager, may lay off employees due to organizational changes, lack of funds or curtailment of work. When layoffs are required they shall be based on relative seniority and the ability to perform the work. However, no regular employee in a classification will be laid off while there are temporary, ~~hourly~~ or probationary employees in that department performing similar duties in the same classification. Transfer may be made between classifications in order to retain the best qualified employees for the work available. The City will make every effort to give employees reasonable notice of intent to lay **employees** off.

F. RESIGNATION

To resign in good standing, an employee shall give the City Manager not less than ten (10) working days prior notice of such resignation unless the City Manager agrees to permit a shorter period of notice because of extenuating circumstances. The notice of resignation shall be in writing and contain the reasons for leaving City service.

G. RE-EMPLOYMENT

Regular and probationary employees with a satisfactory record of service, who resign their positions in accordance with Section IX (F) above, may be allowed to apply for **future** vacancies under the same conditions as set forth in Section VIII (A through **C**) above.

H. TRANSFERS

Employees may be transferred from one position to another with approval of the City Manager provided such transfer is at least the same salary level and the employee meets at least the minimum qualifications for the new position. The exception would be if the employee requests a transfer to a lower paid position.

VOLUNTARY TRANSFER

Transfer, by employee request, can be accomplished at the same salary level, or a lower level, provided minimum qualifications for the new position are met.

TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT

The City has the right to temporarily assign an employee to any position, in any department, when it is deemed to be in the best interest of the City, provided the employee being transferred meets the minimum qualifications for the position.

I. EMPLOYEE EVALUATION

It is the policy of the City to regularly evaluate employees for actions and deeds which will be noted in their personnel file.

Each employee shall receive a performance evaluation by his/her supervisor annually. The evaluation shall objectively assess the employee's performance during the preceding twelve (12) months. Results shall be reviewed by and discussed with the employee prior to review by the City Manager and filing in the employee's personnel record. No step increase or promotion may be given to any employee except upon satisfactory performance evaluations. ~~based upon e~~ Current budget constraints **will determine whether salary step increases and/or promotions will be made available**. Special situations may require additional performance evaluations during the twelve (12) month period. These must be approved and directed by the City Manager.

J. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

The Drug Free Workplace policy of the City is found in Chapter XX. Employees should familiarize themselves with this policy, and are responsible to abide by and conform to it. **New employees must pass a drug/alcohol test prior to beginning work. For employees driving City vehicles and/or equipment, passing random drug tests is required during continued employment with the City.**

K. WORK SCHEDULE

The regularly scheduled hours and days of work shall be established by the City. On occasion, it may be necessary to alter the regularly scheduled hours and days of work. Regular hours may differ in each city department and will be published by that Department Director. When the work schedule is altered, employees are required to attend work in accordance to it.

The hours during which city offices and departments shall be open to serve the public will be determined by the City Manager with City Council approval. The hours of work for individual positions shall be determined by the Department Director, with the approval of the City Manager, to meet the needs of the City.

The schedule for regular full-time employees will normally provide for a work week of forty (40) hours within a specific seven day period. Other work schedules may be established to meet the needs of specific city services. **One group that has an approved variance from the normal 40 hour week is the 48 hour shifts for the Fire Department.**

L. FLEX TIME

With approval of appropriate authority, work schedules may vary with the stipulation that time worked will be compensated on a one hour for one hour basis. Work hours may be staggered on a flex-time arrangement to provide longer hours of service to the public, or for some other approved **needful City** purpose.

~~Employees for whom necessity requires a different schedule or a temporary change in a regular schedule than that generally applied will work according to regulations prepared by the respective Department Director and approved by the City Manager.~~

M. LUNCH AND REST PERIODS

Employees are provided a one hour lunch period or one-half hour lunch period. Lunch schedules may vary according to department need. A Department Director may require an employee to perform tasks during the meal period. Any employee who **is required by their Supervisor to work**, ~~for emergency or other reasons, works~~ during a lunch period must report such time as time worked.

Employees are entitled to a fifteen (15) minute paid rest period for each four (4) hours of working time. Breaks shall be arranged so as not to interfere with city business.

N. SAFETY RULES AND ACCIDENT REPORTS

1. SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT

The City's first priority is to maintain a safe working environment for its employees and the public. For the employee's protection, job-related injuries, accidents or illnesses must be reported immediately in accordance with this City safety and accident policy.

2. MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

Each department will consider the need for adopting safety practices, policy, or procedures warranted by the hazards

department employees encounter. Department Directors are encouraged to involve employees in this process.

A copy of such practices, policies, or procedures will be delivered and explained in detail. All department employees shall then sign a receipt, which will be placed in the individual employee's personnel file, stating that they have read and understood these rules. Department Directors shall also explain to their employees that a violation of these safety rules could lead to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.

3. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY

Every employee must be safety conscious and responsible for helping the City achieve the goal of providing a safe work place. Employees shall report any unsafe or hazardous condition to their supervisor immediately.

4. SAFE WORK PRACTICES

Employees are expected to use common sense and good judgment in their work habits and to follow safe work practices. Department Directors and Supervisors shall ensure that safe work practices are utilized. Examples of safe work practices are as follows:

Using the proper safety equipment when performing a work assignment;

Not operating equipment or machinery while using prescribed medication without a doctor's written approval;

Under no circumstances should an employee operate any type of machinery or equipment while under the influence of drugs or alcohol;

Operating only equipment or machinery for which training or orientation has been received;

Warning co-workers of unsafe conditions or practices;

Following all safety and operating rules posted on equipment and machinery;

Refraining from horseplay at all times;

Wearing safety belts when operating City-owned vehicles or private vehicles when on City business; and,

Following OSHA rules, including but not limited to confined space access and chlorine handling guidelines. Employees are responsible for maintaining current knowledge of periodic rule/regulation changes made by the issuing State and Federal safety agencies.

5. SAFETY TRAINING

Periodic training will be arranged when appropriate in the judgment of the Department Director. Employees will participate in all required safety training programs offered by the City.

6. REPORTING ACCIDENTS

The City Manager shall be notified of all accidents involving City employees and/or City equipment as soon as possible but in no event later than the next work day. Accidents involving City owned vehicles or personal vehicles being operated on City business shall be reported to the Police Department for investigation. For accidents involving CDL drivers, see XXI.A.1.e & B.1.d.

O. PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES

Pursuant to Title 2 of the Clinton City Code of Revised Ordinances; it is the policy of the City to require accountability for the requisition of all goods and services purchased by the City. Authority to make purchases on the City's financial accounts is approved through the City Manager. Departmental purchases must be cleared **and approved by the** ~~through~~ Department Directors. Accountability for purchasing actions is controlled by the Accounting Office. Specific purchasing guidelines can be found in the official City Purchasing Policy.

X. COMPENSATION

A. PAY PLAN

The City shall adopt a pay plan for all positions in the City. The pay plan shall include each classification, a minimum and maximum rate of pay and such intermediate rates as are considered necessary and equitable. Flat and hourly rates may be used in place of salary ranges where appropriate **and approved by the City Manager.**

Cost of living adjustments reflected in a percentage increase to the pay plan base will be considered annually in conjunction with the annual budget process. The percent of increase, if any, will be decided by the City Council.

The pay plan shall consist of salary ranges each having a probationary and nineteen (19) grade or incremental steps with a 2% differential between each step. Each classification shall have a minimum and maximum salary range.

When an employee has reached the top step of his/her pay plan (Step 19) he/she will be eligible on each anniversary for a 1% per year longevity pay increase, as determined by the annual evaluation and funding availability.

Any employee, at any time of the year, may be eligible for an exemplary service bonus. This bonus may be up to 2% of the employee's annual salary. It may be for any of the following reasons, though not exclusively:

1. Money savings
2. Life saving action.
3. Educational and training accomplishment.
4. Completion of an extra strenuous operation requiring a lot of employees own time.

All exemplary service bonuses must be recommended by the Department Director (and/or the City Manager), and approved by the City Manager. These are one time events and do not impact the employee's normal salary.

The salary range assigned to each classification shall be such as to equitably reflect the differences in the responsibilities and duties between it and other classifications, taking into account salary rates, benefits paid, and other relevant factors.

The City Manager is responsible for maintaining and administrating the pay plan. It is the policy of the City that every department use the pay plan in the same manner. A copy of the pay plan will be maintained in the City Hall as a matter of public record. The rate of pay for temporary employees shall be at least federal minimum wage, and will be set by the Department Director, and approved by the City Manager, to attract qualified personnel. Employee's classified temporary shall not be eligible for City sponsored medical, retirement, vacation, ~~and~~ sick leave **and other benefits provided regular employees.**

Regular employees are hired on an hourly wage rate and receive all applicable benefits. Appointments of regular employees are made, pursuant to the hiring procedures established in Section VII and VIII of these rules, by the Department Director with the advice and consent of the City Manager. **Employment** is subject to all terms and conditions of these personnel rules and regulations.

B. CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION

Positions may be changed from one class to another, provided the minimum requirements of the job are met. The City may reclassify positions within the financial limitations of the current City budget using the following criteria:

Positions are classified in a range and vacancies are filled ~~at~~ **within** the established range (most vacancies start at the probationary step, but **with City Manager approval** may be started at a higher step in the range when unusual difficulty in filling the position is experienced or the person hired is exceptionally qualified). ~~City Manager approval is required.~~

Merit increases within classification ranges will be granted in **STEP INCREMENTS ONLY**. Requests for increases must include a satisfactory performance rating for the employee and approval of the City Manager.

Department Directors are responsible for notifying the City Manager of any unusual changes in positions. An employee may

also request of the Department Director that his/her position be reviewed to determine whether it is properly classified. The City Manager will make the necessary investigation of any such request and any changes in job classification approved by him/her will be documented in written form.

C. SALARY INCREASES

As needed, the City shall analyze compensation policies, cost of living, fluctuations in the personnel requirements of the City, and salary range for each class of position, to determine whether adjustments should be made in compensation, either generally or in specific positions.

Increases **will not** be automatic, but are based on consideration of individual employee performance, job related educational achievement, disciplinary actions required, and annual evaluations which are reviewed and discussed with each employee, and maintained in the employee's permanent file. Funding capability of the City to budget salary increases will be the overriding factor.

D. MERIT SALARY RANGE STEP INCREASES

Merit increases will be considered annually in conjunction with the annual evaluations. Merit increases are designed to reward levels of improved and increased job performance by individual employees. As is appropriate, employees may progress through their 19-step salary range. After reaching their top salary range, only the 1% longevity merit increase will be available annually.

Subsequent to each annual evaluation, Department Directors shall identify to the City Manager whether or not an employee is recommended for a merit salary step increase. Such merit salary step increase may be restricted due to budget constraints.

Regular employees not recommended for merit salary step increases may appeal such action through the procedure provided in Section XVIII (grievance).

E. SERVICE AWARDS

A regular employee (full or part time) may be eligible for a service award after continuous city employment of **five year increments (i.e. 5, 10, 15, 20, 25, etc...)** ~~and 30 year time periods.~~ The dollar award or other benefit provided for these service awards will be set from time to time by the City Council and based on current budget availability.

F. NON-DISCIPLINARY DEMOTION

Except for a request initiated by the employee, an employee who is demoted for other than disciplinary reasons to a lower salary range than that to which he was previously assigned, shall have his/her salary reduced to the highest step in the new range, which is less than, but closest to, the salary of the previous salary range step.

G. RECLASSIFICATION

An employee, whose position is reclassified from one salary range to ~~another~~ **a higher one**, shall be paid at the ~~same rate for which he/she was paid in the previous salary range or the lowest step in the new salary range, if such step in the new grade is higher.~~ **step rate that is the lowest step rate higher than the previous salary range step rate. If reclassification is to a lower salary range, the employee will continue at the step rate from the previous salary range until their next anniversary evaluation merit step, which if merited would be to the next higher step in the new salary range.**

H. PAY PERIODS AND DAYS

The ~~minimum~~ **normal** pay period will consist of 80 hours, usually consisting of two weeks, Sunday through Saturday. City pay periods are bi-weekly with checks **normally** issued five (5) days after the close of the pay period.

XI. OVERTIME

A. POLICY

Overtime shall be paid for each hour worked in excess of 40 hours per week for hourly wage employees. Overtime shall require prior approval by the Supervisor, **Director or City Manager** and be kept to a minimum.

B. COMPENSATION

Overtime will be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1½) the regular hourly rate, or employees who work overtime will be given the equivalent (1½ hours for each hour worked) in compensatory time off, at a mutually acceptable time.

Overtime is not paid to salaried employees exempted under the Fair Labor Standards Act.

Part-time employees will receive overtime pay as scheduled above, when total hours of work exceed 40 hours per week **or as stated elsewhere in this Policy as pertains to "on call" or "call back" hours.**

Employees working on a flex-time schedule will not normally be authorized overtime because of the flex hour schedule, but will be given time off on other scheduled workdays.

Overtime will not be paid for hours beyond the regular scheduled work hours during employee association meetings, for employee negotiations, or any employee appeal process, ~~or~~ transportation time to and from any employee training or conferences **or any such conference meetings.**

For the purpose of computing overtime, any holiday, sick, vacation or other paid leave time will not be counted in reaching the 40 hour weekly regular work limit. On-call duty hours will not be used in computing overtime, **however, over time is accrued unless for any time** the employee is actually called to duty.

Employees who at their own option, but with the approval of the Department Director, substitute during scheduled hours for another employee employed in the same capacity may not use those hours worked towards their own overtime calculation. All such "substitution" hours will be credited to the scheduled employee. The Department Director need not keep a record that the substitution has taken place.

C. COMPENSATORY TIME OFF

Maximum accrual of compensatory time off shall not exceed 48 hours. Any accumulation exceeding this limit must first be approved by the City Manager.

D. FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

Pursuant to the *Fair Labor Standards Act*, the above overtime regulations shall not apply to **designated** executive, supervisory, administrative, professional or contractual employees of the City who are compensated on a salary basis and paid not less than the federal required amount.

E. PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES

Public Works employees ~~are~~ **may be** assigned stand-by duty **normally for** ~~on~~ a weekly basis. For that stand-by service the employee shall receive compensation the equivalent of four (4) hours of regular pay **for that week.** These stand-by hours do not apply towards the calculation of overtime hours.

When a storm is imminent, employees may be required to be on storm alert status. For this storm alert service, employees shall receive compensation the equivalent of one (1) hour of regular pay per day on alert. Any paid storm alert hours do not apply

towards the calculation of overtime hours.

In addition to this stand-by or storm alert pay, if during the stand-by or storm alert duty an employee is called back to work to perform services for the City, the employee shall be compensated for the services at the rate of one and one-half (1½) times his/her hourly rate of pay except on City holidays, during which time the employee shall be compensated with regular holiday pay plus 1½ times his/her hourly rate of pay for each hour worked, or regular holiday pay plus compensatory time off at 1½ hours for each hour worked.

Employees shall not consume alcoholic beverages when on stand-by or storm alert status, and shall remain within 30 minutes response time.

F. POLICE COURT DUTY

Any court time that places the employee's total hours worked over 40 will be compensated at the rate of 1½ times their regular rate of pay. All court time must be approved in the same manner as regular overtime.

XII. HOLIDAYS

- A. All regular full-time and part-time employees shall be entitled to the following holidays with pay: (holiday pay is the regular straight time rate of up to 8 hours for regular full-time employees)

NEW YEAR'S DAY - First day of January
MARTIN LUTHER KING - Third Monday of January
PRESIDENTS DAY - Third Monday in February
MEMORIAL DAY - Last Monday in May
INDEPENDENCE DAY - July 4
PIONEER DAY - July 24
LABOR DAY - First Monday in September
COLUMBUS DAY - Second Monday in October
VETERANS DAY - November 11
THANKSGIVING DAY - Fourth Thursday in November
DAY AFTER THANKSGIVING - Friday following Thanksgiving Day
CHRISTMAS DAY - December 25

Additional holidays may be declared from time to time by the City Council.

- B. Employees whose duties are necessary to maintain essential City Services may be required to work on holidays. Employees who are scheduled and work on a holiday are paid up to the regular 8 or 10 hours of holiday pay as is applicable to their current schedule, in addition to either their regular straight time rate for the first eight (8) or ten (10) hours, or hour for hour compensatory time off, unless they have already worked a full 40 hour week. All hours in excess of 40 for the week shall be compensated at 1½ times the normal hourly rate whether calculated for pay or compensatory time off.
- C. During a holiday week, all hours in excess of 40 in one week shall be compensated as identified in XI.B. For an employee normally off on holidays, but called back to work on a holiday, he/she shall be compensated at regular holiday pay plus 1½ times the hourly rate of pay for each excess hour worked, or at regular holiday pay plus compensatory time off at 1½ hours for each excess hour worked.
- D. Whenever a holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed as the holiday. Whenever a holiday falls on Saturday, the previous Friday shall be observed as a holiday.
- E. On duty full-time firemen shall receive the equivalent of 96 hours of alternate time off to compensate for the holidays. This may be utilized in four 24 hour shifts off annually.
- F. When an authorized holiday falls on an employee's day off, the holiday Sunday or Saturday rule applies.
- G. Holidays which occur during vacation or sick leave shall not be charged against such leave.

XIII. VACATIONS

The employee's date of hire will be used in calculating vacation accrual. Regular full and part-time employees shall accrue vacation hours. Leave without pay and unpaid administrative leave do not count toward accrual. Probationary employees accrue the appropriate vacation leave, but are not entitled to use it until they pass their probationary period and become regular employees. Employee accrual is based on years of employment, position, and is prorated as follows:

<u>YEARS OF EMPLOYMENT</u>	<u>FTE's</u>	<u>PTE's</u>	<u>EXEMPT</u>
1 - 5 years	12 days	Pro-rated	18 days
6 - 10 years	15days	Pro-rated	21 days
11 - 15 years	18 days	Pro-rated	24 days
16 - 21 years	21 days	Pro-rated	27 days
Over 21 years	24 days	Pro-rated	30 days

Paid vacation is accrued and shall be used as follows:

- A. The approval and timing of all annual leave shall be at the discretion of the employee's Department Director with due regard to the wishes of the employee as well as the needs and demands of City service. Employees should consider taking multiple days off at a time in order to maximize the intent of paid leave off from normal work. All such leave should normally be taken within one (1) calendar year from the day earned.
- B. Maximum vacation time that can be carried from year to year will be 240 hours (30 days) for non-management employees and 288 hours (36 days) for exempt employees, unless approved by the City Manager.
- C. Any vacation time accrued above hours identified in the above paragraph must be used by December 31st of each year, unless carryover is approved by the City Manager.
- D. Upon termination/resignation/retirement, an employee shall be paid for all accrued vacation time. However, no payment for accrued vacation will be made for terminations during an employee's probationary period, except following a promotion when all benefits are retained.
- E. Vacation time is pro-rated for regular part-time employees based on the number of hours worked in a month as a ratio of the equivalent full-time employee's accrual benefit.
- F. In special cases, determined by the City Manager, an employee may be allowed to: 1) donate limited accrued vacation leave to another employee, or, 2) sell back to the City a limited amount of accrued vacation leave which exceeds the maximum accumulation.

XIV. LEAVES OF ABSENCE

A. SICK LEAVE WITH PAY

All regular employees will be entitled to sick leave with pay after the first month of employment. Sick leave shall accrue at the rate of eight (8) hours for each full month of service, with the exception of regular part-time employees who shall accrue sick leave based on the ratio of hours worked in comparison to the full-time equivalent.

As an incentive to minimize the use of sick leave, employees who have accumulated over 480 hours of sick leave and used less than 64 hours of sick leave during the previous 12 months, may convert up to 32 hours of sick leave to vacation annual leave or pay. Employees, who have accumulated less than 480 hours of sick leave and used 32 hours or less of sick leave during the previous 12 months, may convert up to 8 hours of sick leave to vacation annual leave or pay. Such conversion shall be on a 1 hour sick leave to a 1 hour vacation or pay basis. Use of this conversion incentive shall be accomplished by the second week of December of each year. The availability of this incentive depends on budgetary funding on a fiscal year basis. The City Manager shall notify employees if this conversion incentive is not funded for any given fiscal year.

There shall be no limit of the number of hours (days) of sick leave that can be accrued. Employees who are granted a leave of absence with pay shall continue to accrue sick leave.

Employees retiring from the City employment and from URS and have an accrued sick leave balance of over 480 hours, may sell back to the City any and all sick leave hours in excess of the 480 hours at a rate of 15% of the employee's current per hour salary for each buy back sick leave hour.

Sick leave will be used in amounts of not less than one-half (½) hour increments. An employee may use accrued sick leave when unable to perform his work by reason of:

1. Personal illness or injury.
2. Necessity for medical or dental care.
3. Exposure to contagious disease under circumstances by which the health of the public or fellow employees would be endangered.
4. Caring for an injury or illness of immediate family members, for up to one day per injury or illness, unless approval for extended leave is granted by the employee's Department Director.
5. At the time of the birth or adoption of a child, the employee may be granted a sick leave of absence with pay for up to three days (maximum 24 hours paid).
6. In the event of a death in the employee's immediate family, an employee may be granted a leave of absence with pay, not to exceed three (3) days (maximum 24 hours paid). In addition, the employee may use up to five (5) additional days of sick leave, (maximum 40 hours paid sick leave), per occurrence, to enable the employee to attend and/or make arrangements for the funeral of a family member.

B. EXCEPTIONS TO SICK LEAVE WITH PAY

Compensation for accrued sick leave is not authorized when an employee leaves City Service for any reason other than retirement. After 3 days of sick leave usage, and from time to time on a longer term of authorized sick leave usage, the City may require the employee to submit a disability certificate from the attending physician. In addition, the City may require this same certification on even a 1 day use of sick leave if the pattern of sick leave usage indicates abuse of sick leave. Department Directors need to receive authorization from the City Manager for this requirement. Failure or refusal to supply such certificate, or if the certificate does not clearly show sufficient disability to preclude the employee from the performance of duties, will result in the sick leave being canceled. Refusal to return to work will be grounds for the employee's termination. Unauthorized use or abuse of sick leave shall also be grounds for disciplinary action, as identified in Section XVI.C.5.

C. SICK LEAVE WITHOUT PAY

Upon application of any regular employee, sick leave without pay may be granted for the remaining period of disability, once accrued sick leave with pay and all other paid leave (i.e. vacation, comp time) have been depleted. In the event that such additional requested sick leave exceeds 30 days, an extension must be requested and approved by the City Council.

D. FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

Some absences due to illness, accident or personal reasons may qualify under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA). This is a federal law for eligible regular employees who need to be off work for certain allowed “family and medical” reasons. FMLA provides up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave ~~each year~~, during which health care benefits are continued and jobs are protected upon return to work, within certain guidelines.

1. Qualifying events for use of the FMLA **by a qualifying city employee** are:
 - a. the birthing of a child and ~~to~~ caring for that child;
 - b. the placement of a child with an employee for adoption or foster care (paperwork verifying this event may be required);
 - c. to care for the employee’s spouse, children or parent who has a serious health condition (serious health conditions may require a doctor’s certification of illness);
 - d. for a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform his/her job (serious health conditions may require a doctor’s certification of illness);
 - e. for any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that a spouse, son, daughter, or parent is a military member on covered active duty or called to covered active duty status.
2. To be eligible for FMLA, a regular full-time or regular part-time employee must have been employed by the City for twelve months and worked for the City at least 1,250 hours during that time. The twelve months of employment do not have to be consecutive. That means any time previously worked for the City (including seasonal work) could, in most cases, be used to meet the twelve month requirement. If the employee has a break in service that lasted seven years or more, the time worked prior to the break will not count unless the break is due to service covered by the Uniformed Service Employment and Reemployment Rights Act. A qualified employee is then eligible for up to twelve weeks of unpaid leave during the ensuing twelve month period. However, an employee taking FMLA will be required to expend accrued paid leave to its exhaustion as is applicable for the various qualifying events.
 - a. For an employee giving birth, childbirth or related circumstances is considered a “temporary disability” and accrued sick leave, vacation or comp time shall be used during the period of time the employee’s doctor certifies the employee’s “temporary disability”.
 - b. For an employee’s serious health condition, accrued sick leave, vacation or comp time shall be used.
 - c. For care taking of a newborn (excluding the childbirth “temporary disability” time period), adoption or foster child care, and caring for spouse, children or parent who has a serious health condition, **only** accrued vacation and compensatory time shall be used. No accrued sick leave shall be eligible for these activities.
 - d. After the eligible accrued paid leave is exhausted, the employee will continue with unpaid leave.
3. Employees desiring to use FMLA leave are required to give the City a written notice at least 30 days prior to the commencement of the leave for any anticipated treatment or activity. For emergency/unplanned leave needs, the employee must give the City notice as soon as reasonably possible. All the proper notification, leave request and informational forms need to be filled out and filed with the City. Justification of the conditions and events requiring the employee to take FMLA leave may also be required.
4. During FMLA leave, the City shall maintain the employer paid health insurance benefits. Any employee paid portion of health insurance benefits must be paid on time as usual, or face the consequence of losing the coverage pertaining to the employee portion payment. No other City benefits shall be accrued during any unpaid time periods of the FLMA leave. If an employee decides not to return to work at the end of the FLMA leave period for reasons other than a serious health condition or circumstances beyond his/her control, the City can require reimbursement of medical

premiums paid while the employee was in an unpaid leave status.

5. If a husband and wife both work for the City and are both eligible for FMLA leave, they are limited to a combined total of twelve weeks leave during any **qualifying** twelve month period.
6. In the case of employee illness, the City may require a medical certification ~~a~~ **and** fitness for duty report from the employee's doctor prior to the employee returning to work.
7. **Under certain circumstances and ~~W~~with prior approval by the ~~supervising Department Director~~ the City Manager, FMLA leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule. The City's need for service to the public shall be of prime concern when considering an intermittent schedule. Any such schedule would need to be very definitive in nature so the City would have the opportunity to hire temporary help for those days of FMLA leave.**
8. During the FMLA leave, the employee may be required to periodically notify their City supervisor of the event condition and their intent to return to work at the conclusion of the leave.
9. Upon return to work, the employee will either be returned to their previous job or another equivalent job with the same pay and benefits (if the original job is not available), if the employee is able to perform the essential functions of the job, with or without accommodation.
10. There may be other details of the FMLA that apply to your specific circumstances. Contact the City Manager or City Treasurer to get more information and answers to your questions on FMLA.

E. MATERNITY LEAVE

Pregnant employees anticipating time off for childbirth should consider the FMLA option in subsection "D."

To be eligible for sick leave benefits due to childbirth or related circumstances, the employee must notify the City in writing of the anticipated date of departure and date of return, at least thirty (30) working days prior to the beginning of the leave, if possible. In the event of emergency, such as premature delivery, telephone notice shall suffice, provided written notice is given within three (3) working days following the emergency.

Disability caused by childbirth or related circumstances shall be considered a temporary disability and will be covered by accrued sick leave **and other accrued paid leave, as the case may be**, during the period that the employee's doctor certifies the employee's "disability".

When to commence or terminate leave, whether paid or unpaid, both prior to and after delivery is a decision to be made by the employee **and with an official notice to the City from** the treating physician.

Time taken ~~before or after~~ **during** a certified period of disability **for childbirth** must be taken in the following order: sick leave, compensatory time, vacation time, and lastly, leave without pay. If the period of disability, as certified by the treating physician, exceeds accrued paid leave, the employee may be allowed to take a leave of absence without pay or fringe benefits as described in subsection H of this chapter.

F. MILITARY LEAVE

A regular full or part-time post-probationary employee who is a member of the National Guard, a Reserve component of the Armed Forces of the United States, or of the United States Public Health Services, is entitled to a leave of absence for a period not to exceed 15 calendar days in any calendar year.

Such leave shall be granted without loss of pay or other leave and without impairment of other rights or benefits to which he/she is entitled, providing the employee receives bona fide orders to active or training duty for a temporary period, and providing he/she returns to his/her position immediately upon expiration of the period for which he/she was ordered to duty. Without loss of pay means the City will pay the employee the difference between the "military on duty pay" and their normal City payroll.

Leave without pay will be allowed pursuant to Utah Law for employees entering military service for extended or indefinite periods of active duty or for individuals who are currently members of the Guard or Reserves and are called to active duty other than annual 15-day duty.

G. MISCELLANEOUS LEAVE WITH PAY

A regular employee, with approval, is entitled to leave his/her duties without loss of time, pay, or other leave benefits for absence caused by:

1. Time necessary for voting, when the employee is unable to vote before or after working hours, due to an emergency work schedule.
2. City employees called for jury duty, or subpoenaed as a witness for the City, shall not suffer any loss of regular City compensation during such absence; however, they shall be required to transfer any compensation received for the performance of such in excess of any paid traveling expenses, to the City. Time not worked because of such duty shall not affect vacation or sick leave accrued. No private civil or criminal case of the employee shall be covered by this court leave provision.
3. Employees who are requested by an appropriate agency to participate in a search and rescue operation are eligible for leave with pay for a period approved by the City Manager.
4. Bereavement leave with pay for up to three (3) days (maximum 24 hours) is authorized in case of a death in the immediate family, as outlined in A.6 of this Chapter.

H. LEAVE WITHOUT PAY

Normally a regular employee may be granted leave without pay for a period not exceeding 90 days. Requests for such leave must be in writing, and must establish reasonable justification for approval by the City Manager. No vacation, sick leave, retirement, medical or other benefits will be continued or accrued during ~~extended~~ periods of leave without pay. Information concerning ~~extended benefits~~ **leave without pay** is available from the City Manager.

A leave of absence without pay as granted herein may be terminated prior to the expiration date thereof with the consent of the City Manager. If this action is instigated by the City, for whatever reason or purpose, proper notification will be given to the employee of their leave termination, with a return to duty of no sooner than 48 hours (unless mutually agreed upon).

Failure of an employee to report for duty promptly at the expiration of his/her leave, or a violation of any agreement or understanding entered into by the same, relative thereto, shall be just cause for his/her discharge.

XV. BENEFITS

A. HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE

The City participates with employees and their dependents to provide health and dental insurance to cover non-occupation injuries and illnesses. All regular full-time employees are eligible for coverage on the first day of new employment. Information and health care booklets are available from the City Treasurer. The City may pay the entire premium cost for the employee and dependents. If an employee **has other full health coverage and** elects not to participate **in the city system**, cash in lieu benefit may be offered.

In compliance with COBRA (Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act), the City will offer continuing health care coverage on a self-pay basis to employees and/or their dependents following termination, retirement, death, divorce, separation or when a dependent child ceases to be a dependent child under the provisions of the health plan.

This continued COBRA health care coverage will be the same as the current level provided to the employee and/or other employees purchasing that level of coverage. In all matters concerning eligibility for and/or duration of continued health care coverage, the City will comply with the requirements of COBRA.

B. LIFE INSURANCE

The City provides a group life, accidental death, and dismemberment insurance for all regular employees. The basic insured amount reduces at certain age periods, as provided in the current policy.

C. RETIREMENT

The City provides retirement benefits for its qualified employees through the Public Employees and Public Safety Retirement Systems of the State of Utah and F.I.C.A. (Social Security). The City pays the required contribution for the employee as is outlined in the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). The contribution to F.I.C.A. is shared between the City and the employee as per federal law.

The City also participates in deferred compensation programs through the State of Utah. All regular employees achieving an average of 20 hours per week are permitted to participate in these programs. For employees hired prior to July 1, 2015, the City contributes an amount historically provided. For employees hired after June 30, 2015, the City will participate in a matching deferred compensation program through the State of Utah in an amount established by action of the City Council. Consult the City Treasurer for details.

There is no mandatory retirement age for City Employees. However, employees should consult PERS' Summary of Member Benefits for further information.

D. UTAH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

It is the intent and purpose of the City to comply with all applicable rules and regulations pertaining to the Utah Occupational Safety and Health Act as established under section 18 of the William-Steiger Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.

The City shall furnish each of its employees employment, free from recognized hazards that are causing or are likely to cause death or physical harm to such employee and does hereby require that each employee comply with the occupational safety and health standards, orders, rules, and regulations set forth by the above Act.

The City provides Workman's Compensation Insurance coverage for all employees covering job related injuries and illnesses occurring during employment with the City. The injured employee is responsible for immediately notifying his/her supervisor, completing an accident report and submitting it to the supervisor no later than the working day following the accident ~~following~~ **or** the injury, unless the seriousness of the accident makes it impossible for him or her to do so. Failure to complete the required accident report may jeopardize the employee's right to worker's compensation benefits.

A report on any on-the-job injury resulting in disability or compensable lost time shall be submitted by the City Manager or other designated official to the ~~Industrial Commission~~ **the City's insurance carrier (ULGT) within seven (7) days of the incident. The insurance carrier then has fourteen (14) days to provide** ~~and to the affected employee within seven (7) calendar days of a "First Report of Injury" form to the Industrial Accidents Division of the Utah Labor Commission.~~

~~Should any sudden or unusual occurrence or change of conditions occur (such as the appearance of toxic or unusual fumes or gases, explosions, fires, etc...), whether due to any accident or other instance, that might affect the health or safety of City employees or tend to increase the hazards thereof, the Industrial Commission of Utah shall be notified at once by the Dept Head or designated official. Such notification must be made whether or not any actual injuries result from the above occurrences or changes of conditions.~~

When an employee must take time off from work as a result of ~~such an on the job~~ injury or illness, he/she shall receive compensation as scheduled by the Utah State ~~Industrial Labor~~ Commission, and the City will supplement it to equal regular take home pay.

No employee of the City shall be entitled to draw financial compensation and/or benefits from the City during such time as the employee is drawing workmen's compensation or any other similar benefits or payments either from the City or from any other sources, which accumulated results in a higher net salary than the employee would normally earn.

In accordance with state law, management shall inspect or designate a competent person or persons to inspect frequently for unsafe conditions and practices, defective equipment and materials, and where such conditions are found, take appropriate action to correct such conditions immediately. Supervisory personnel shall enforce safety regulations and issue such rules as may be necessary to safeguard the health and lives of employees. They shall warn all employees of any dangerous conditions and permit no one to work in an unsafe place, except for the purpose of making it safe.

E. CONFERENCES & CONVENTIONS

Decisions concerning employee attendance at conferences, conventions, or other meetings, at City expense, shall be made by the City Manager. Members of professional societies may be granted permission to attend meetings of their society, when such attendance is considered to be in the best interest of the City and funds are available for the expenditure. No overtime pay is available for conferences and conventions.

F. TRAVEL EXPENSE

When employees are required to travel outside the City on City business, employees shall comply with the following guidelines:

1. Prior to traveling outside the City, the employee will obtain approval for the trip, and the mode of travel from his/her Department Director, Supervisor, or the City Manager.
2. If the employee is authorized to use a private vehicle, mileage will be paid as determined from time to time by the City Council, provided the private vehicle use is advantageous to the City. This rate includes all travel, insurance, maintenance and storage expense of the vehicle. **The City assumes no liability for this mode of travel or provides added subsidy beyond the approved mileage reimbursement rate.**
3. Employees receiving a monthly vehicle allowance, in lieu of use of a City vehicle, will be responsible for all vehicle costs, ~~and~~ **and maintenance and insurance coverage costs.** They will also be responsible for all fuel costs within a 30 mile radius of City Hall. Mileage outside that radius will be reimbursed by the City at the going rate.
4. Employees using personal vehicles for City business shall furnish to the City proof of personal insurance coverage. The City Council may set the levels of such required coverage from time to time, provided it shall not create an excessive burden on the employee.
5. A per diem allowance for food and lodging will be allowed per traveling employee. These amounts will be set by the City Council, from time to time. The City does not provide per diem for meals included in the conference/meeting agendas unless an approved reason for not eating those meals is included in the documentation. For high cost areas in-

state and for out-of-state travel, the allowance will be determined on an individual basis by the City Manager. In special circumstances, the City Manager may adjust the allowances.

6. Drivers of city-owned vehicles shall obey all traffic and speed laws. No alcoholic beverages shall be carried in a city-owned vehicle **or in a private vehicle being used for city activity purposes**, except as required for evidence by law enforcement officials.
7. Employees authorized to utilize city-owned vehicles with which to travel to conferences or such meetings, may also receive authorization from the City Manager to transport non-city personnel (family members **or peers from other cities attending the conference/meeting**) in the vehicle. However, non-city passengers in these vehicles shall not participate in driving, unless there is an emergency and the city employee is unable to drive.
8. All drivers and passengers in a City vehicle shall wear their seatbelt or safety harness at all times while traveling ~~on public roadways~~. Exceptions shall be for vehicles not equipped with seatbelts and for employees whose work specifically requires unencumbrance while in a vehicle. City drivers shall adhere to all safe driving and rules of the road procedures at all times.

G. EDUCATIONAL AND TRAINING AID

The City shall encourage training opportunities for employees in order that services rendered to the City will be more effective. At the discretion of the City, training sessions may be conducted during regular working hours. Overtime will not be paid for hours beyond the employee's regular scheduled work hours during training except for authorized Fire Fighter **and Police Officer** training outside regularly scheduled shifts.

The City may **assist in paying** an employee's tuition **or educational materials** cost upon successful completion of a job related course. Pre-approval by the City Manager and available funds are required. **All city paid cost of materials shall become the property of the City.**

When attendance is required and/or paid by the City, all educational materials provided to the employee shall become the property of the City.

H. PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

Employees are encouraged to join and participate in job-related professional associations and groups. With prior approval from the City Manager, employees may attend conferences, seminars, or short training courses that are job-related **and budgeted**. Preference will be given to courses sponsored by associations that lead to certificates of advanced standing such as EMT, police, fire fighter, accredited sewer and water systems operations, building inspection, or accredited public works operators.

XVI. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

- A. Citizens of the City are always to be treated with respect. Conduct of city employees is always on public display. Many times public opinion is based on what the citizens see and hear from the city employees. Therefore, all city employees are expected to dress appropriately for the work they are doing and always act in a professional manner. All employees are responsible to and will be held accountable for establishing and maintaining working relationships with fellow employees, supervisors, elected officials, other agency representatives, and citizens of the community with whom they must interact. Employees shall fully utilize their skills and abilities to effectively and efficiently fulfill their job responsibilities and duties.
- B. The principal objective in normal disciplinary actions is to improve the performance, efficiency and morale of the city employees. The policy of the City is that employee discipline in normal circumstances be **corrective, progressive and lawful**.
1. **Corrective** in that the supervisor reaches an understanding about the causes and/or reasons for an employee's deficiencies, correcting those deficiencies and attempting to restore the employee to a productive and positive employment status.
 2. **Progressive** in that discipline will normally begin with: a counseling session on corrective needs; an oral reprimand or warning and when circumstances of each separate incident or a combination of incidents warrant: proceed to written reprimand **if corrective results are not achieved**; suspension from work without pay or demotion in status **as a final corrective action if needed**; and finally, ~~to~~ discharge from employment with the City.
 3. A major incident of misconduct may require severe disciplinary measures such as suspension or discharge and in that instance may not be preceded by lesser forms of disciplinary action. This is also the case with CDL driver alcohol and/or controlled substance related disciplinary actions.
 4. **Lawful** in that discipline and the procedures by which it is administered is not to violate the City's Personnel Policies, the employee's civil rights or federal or state law.
- C. By way of illustration and not limitation, the following list provides examples of just cause for disciplinary actions:
1. The use of any city owned material or furnishings for private use is prohibited. Specific examples may include but are not limited to:
 - a. The use of city owned vehicles for personal use, (unless part of an employment benefit package or approved by the City Manager);
 - b. The use of city owned supplies for personal projects; and,
 - c. The use of city owned equipment for work on privately owned property.
 2. All city officers and employees should avoid any suggestion of the use of their official position to obtain special advantage in the purchase of any merchandise or other property.
 3. City officers and employees shall not accept gifts and favors from vendors and merchants for personal use beyond that allowed by state law.
 4. The use of the name of the City or any of its departments, except for official city business, is prohibited without prior approval of the City Council. This includes sponsorship by members of any city department of any fund raising activity in the name of that department **or the City**.
 5. Any action or inaction which is a hindrance to the effective performance of city functions or reflects discredit upon the City will be considered just cause for disciplinary action. The following are examples for illustrative purposes and ~~does is not~~ **an exhaustive list of** ~~contain~~ all possible examples of disciplinary offenses:

- a. Drinking intoxicating beverages or use of and/or possession of controlled substances on the job or arriving on the job under the influence of intoxicating beverages or controlled substances; (discipline as described in Chapters XX & XXI of this Policy).
- b. Violation of **or failure to perform** lawful duty;
- c. Violation of the provisions of city ordinances, these rules or any written rules, regulations and policies prescribed by the City, a Department Director, or the City Manager.
- d. Being absent from work without permission (three [3] unexcused absences equals a resignation);
- e. Being habitually absent or tardy;
- f. Abuse of sick leave (use of sick leave for any other purpose than for which is allowable under Section XIV.A.);
- g. Failure to perform assigned work in an efficient manner; incompetence; or, non-performance to the best of ability;
- h. Abusive language or conduct toward the public or fellow employees, or other conduct unbecoming a city employee **on and off the job**;
- i. Being wasteful of material, property or working time;
- j. **Unauthorized use of or abuse of City vehicles, equipment or property**;
- k. Theft or intentional destruction of City property;
- l. Failure to get along with fellow employees to the extent that work being performed is below required standards;
- m. **Violation of the local, state or federal criminal laws**;
- ~~n. Conviction of a felony or a misdemeanor;~~
- ~~o. Prosecution of a felony or misdemeanor where the employee is unable to report for duty or perform the essential work functions of the job;~~
- p. Use of religious, political or fraternal influence;
- q. Personal acceptance of a fee, gift or other valuable item in the course of the employee's work for the City in excess of what is allowed by state law;
- r. Unauthorized release of confidential information regarding the City or city business (includes employee lists and personal information);
- s. Falsification of forms, records or reports including time cards or application materials;
- t. **Dishonesty in work or conduct**;
- u. Sexual harassment, ~~or other unlawful~~ **types of harassment or any other unlawful interpersonal activity aimed at** another employee or the public, **including the use of any form of electronic media to convey these sentiments and messages**;
- v. Insubordination, which is defined as the refusal of an employee to follow lawful directives of a properly authorized supervisor; and,
- w. **Poor driving record**, loss or inability to renew a license, certificate or other special requirement which is mandatory for the employee's specific job requirements.

XVII. DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES

Except as outlined in Chapters XX and XXI of this Policy, it is the general policy of the City that disciplinary actions should be corrective and progressive whenever possible. Employees are required to acknowledge by signature all pre-disciplinary and disciplinary documents to be placed in their personnel files. Therefore, the following disciplinary actions may be considered, the actions do not have to be followed in any particular order; some may even be skipped, depending on the circumstances:

A. "Counseling":

"Counseling" may be used initially to begin the disciplinary process. This is an informal discussion with an employee to outline the issue(s) of employee conduct and/or performance. The supervisor identifies the needed areas of change and expectations for the employee. A summary of the counseling is written up by the supervisor and given to the employee as well as placed in the employee's official personnel file.

B. "Oral Warning":

An "Oral Warning" may be used to correct minor conduct or job performance violations. The supervisor shall discuss the violation privately with the employee and shall explain to the employee what actions will be required to prevent the violation from recurring.

The Supervisor shall file a personnel action form with the City Manager, documenting the oral warning, a copy of which shall be maintained in the employee's personnel file and a copy given to the employee.

C. "Written Warning":

A "Written Warning" may be used to correct first time major, or repeated minor conduct and job performance violations. Supervisors shall discuss the contents of the written warning privately with the employee and shall explain in the written warning what actions will be required to prevent the violation from recurring.

The supervisor shall file a personnel action form with the City Manager documenting the written warning, a copy of which shall be maintained in the employee's personnel file and a copy given to the employee.

D. "Suspension":

"Suspension" shall be imposed when it is determined that it is in the best interest of the City to temporarily remove an employee from his official duties. There are two types of suspensions:

1) Administrative Suspension

Employees may be placed on administrative suspension by the City Manager or his authorized designee, when formal written charges have been filed against the employee for alleged illegal acts, major conduct violations or when it is apparent that it is in the best interest of the City to temporarily remove the employee from official duties. Employees shall receive full pay and benefits while on administrative suspension.

Whenever an employee is placed on administrative suspension a complete investigation of the incident shall be conducted by the City Manager or his authorized designee. The results of the investigation and the action to be taken shall be prepared in writing and provided to the employee.

Whenever possible, investigations related to administrative suspension shall be completed within five (5) working days. Should unusual circumstances cause an investigation to take longer than five (5) days, the employee shall be informed in writing.

In the event that the investigation clears the employee of the charges, the employee will be reinstated. Results of the investigation shall be kept in the employee's permanent file for seven (7) years or less (may vary with the statute of limitations for that issue) after the reinstatement in order to protect the employee from further accusations pertaining to that issue. Subsequently, the investigation information may be placed in a confidential historical file for cleared investigations.

2) Disciplinary Suspensions

Employees may be suspended for an illegal act, a single major conduct violation or a series of continuing minor violations. Disciplinary suspensions should be for not less than three (3), nor more than 30 calendar days. Employees suspended for disciplinary reasons shall not be paid during the period of suspension. Health benefits shall be continued during the suspension period. Paid leave time credit shall not accrue.

Final decisions regarding disciplinary suspensions and reinstatements shall be reviewed and approved by the City Manager.

E. "Salary Reduction":

A salary reduction is the reduction of the employee's salary to a lower step on the salary range and may be set for any length of time. This form of discipline is used when it is advantageous to have the employee remain on the job.

F. "Demotion"

"Demotion" may be used as a disciplinary action for:

- 1) A single major conduct violation; or,
- 2) When it has been documented that an employee's job performance falls below the minimum acceptable standards for his position; or,
- 3) When an employee fails to meet the overall objectives of his position as described in his job description.

Demotion shall include being reduced to a position of less responsibility at a lower salary. At the end of the first three (3) month period, the demoted employee's Supervisor and/or Department Director shall file a written report to the City Manager containing one of the following suggested actions be taken:

- 1) That the employee be retained as a regular employee in the assigned lower job classification. This recommendation should be made when the employee has been satisfactorily performing the duties and responsibilities of a lower job classification; or,
- 2) That the employee be dismissed from City employment. This recommendation should be made when a demoted employee has failed to meet acceptable performance standards during the demotion period.

G. "Dismissal":

An employee may be dismissed from employment with the City for a single major conduct violation, a continuing history of minor conduct violations or because work performance falls below acceptable standards for the employee's position.

It is city policy that no regular employee who has successfully completed the entry or promotional probationary period be discharged without being given an opportunity to be heard on the charges brought against him or her. The employee is to be suspended with pay pending the opportunity to be heard in a Due Process Interview.

Dismissals shall be in writing, clearly stating the reason(s) for the action. Final decisions regarding dismissals shall be approved by the City Manager **after the Due Process Interview**.

H. "Due Process Interview":

This meeting, conducted by the City Manager or his designee, is to acquire the final and complete information upon which the disciplinary decision will be based. The employee may have a representative present if he/she requests. If this occurs, a second management representative will be present during the meeting. This meeting should occur before the demotion or dismissal ~~is rendered to the employee~~ **goes into effect**. The employee's representative is free to consult with the employee, however, the employee, not the representative, will be required to respond to the charges and answer the questions. **The City Manager or his designee will uphold or amend the demotion or dismissal action by the Department Director.**

I. “Probation”

Regular employees may be placed on “probation” as a disciplinary measure at any time during the disciplinary process. The probation period of time shall be no less than thirty (30) days and no more than one (1) year, the length to be determined by the Department Director in consultation with the City Manager. All previous benefits continue during this time period. A new Personnel Performance Evaluation will be required at the end of the probation period. If a positive evaluation, the employee may be released from probation. If the evaluation is negative and shows no improvement in behavior or performance, then the disciplinary process shall continue to the next logical step.

XVIII. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The City shall promptly consider and if appropriate, adjust employee grievances relating to employment conditions and relationships. Furthermore, the City desires to adjust the causes of grievances informally. If possible, both supervisors and employees are expected to resolve problems as they arise.

A. APPEALS

In the event that the informal grievance procedure fails to resolve the issue in contention to the satisfaction of the employee, the City, in order to preserve the rights of all parties, thereby establishes the following steps which shall be followed in submitting and processing a grievance: (If the aggrieved employee works directly for a Department Director, begin with Step Two)

1. Step One

The aggrieved employee or group of employees shall present in writing the grievance to the immediate Supervisor within five (5) working days of its occurrence, not including the day of occurrence.

The Supervisor shall provide a written reply within five (5) working days of the date of presentation of the grievance, not including the date of presentation.

2. Step Two

If the grievance is not settled in Step 1, the written grievance shall be presented to the Department Director by the aggrieved employee(s), together with all pertinent correspondence records and information accumulated to date, within five (5) working days after the response is provided. Department Director shall consult with the Supervisor, then meet with the aggrieved employee(s) and render a decision in writing.

3. Step Three

If the grievance is not settled in Step 2 it shall be presented to the City Manager by the aggrieved employee(s) within five (5) working days after the written response is provided to the employee by the Department Director.

The City Manager shall meet with the Department Director and the aggrieved employee(s) within five (5) working days after the presentation of the written grievance, not including the date of presentation. The City Manager will review the written responses, listen to oral testimony and decide to uphold or modify the Department Director's decision.

If the City Manager is out of town or on leave during this five (5) day period, the period shall commence upon the first working day following the City Manager's return to work.

The written decision of the City Manager shall be final and binding on the employee, or group of employees, and shall be binding upon supervisory personnel as well.

Aggrieving Department Directors and/or other employees working under the direct supervision of the City Manager shall have the right to appeal the City Manager's decision or action to the Mayor and City Council; the City Council's written decision shall be final and binding.

B. APPEALS BOARD HEARING OFFICER

In all cases where an employee is discharged or demoted, he/she shall have the right to appeal such discharge or demotion in accordance to Utah Code 10-3-1105 & 1106, as outlined hereafter. **The City has elected to utilize a qualified Hearing Officer appointed by the City for this purpose in lieu of a multi-member Appeals Board.**

1. ~~The Appeal Board shall consist of five (5) members, i.e. two (2) Clinton City Council members and three (3) Clinton City employees (three [3] additional employees shall be selected as alternates).~~ **The Hearing Officer shall be an experienced attorney or arbitrator dealing with personnel issues.**
 - a. ~~City Council members shall be appointed by the Mayor at the first City Council meeting in January, and serve for the calendar year. If needed, replacements during the year shall be appointed in the same manner.~~
 - b. ~~Employee Appeal Board members shall be elected by the City employees through a secret ballot. Interested parties must submit their names to the City Manager/Recorder at least 10 days prior to the election, to be held on the first Tuesday of the year (or next available day if the first Tuesday is a holiday).~~
 - c. ~~Employees may vote for six (6) persons. The individuals chosen shall be placed upon an eligibility list to serve on this Appeal Board. This list shall be in rank order, the top three (3) to serve as regular Board members and the others, in numerical ranking, to serve as alternates.~~
 - d. ~~Four (4) or more Appeal Board members shall constitute a quorum and shall be present to hear appeals.~~
 - e. ~~No member of the Appeal Board shall be employed by or administer the department for which the aggrieved employee works nor shall be related to the appealing employee through blood or marriage.~~
2. The appealing employee shall file a written appeal to the City Manager within 10 days of the discharge or demotion. He/she shall be entitled to appear in person and to be represented by counsel, to have a public hearing, to confront the witness whose testimony is to be considered, and to examine the evidence to be considered by the Appeals ~~Board.~~ **Hearing Officer.**
3. If the Appeals ~~Board~~ **Hearing Officer** upholds the discharge or demotion, the appealing employee may appeal that decision to the City Council within 14 days of the decision. The City Council's decision shall be final.
4. If the Appeals ~~Board~~ **Hearing Officer** does not uphold the discharge or demotion, the City Manager shall certify the decision to the affected employee and the appropriate Department Director and supervisor. The affected employee shall report for duty the next working day. If the appeal involves violation of Chapters XX or XXI of these policies, the affected employee shall follow the required processes before returning to work.
5. The general procedure delineated in Utah Code 10-3-1106(2-6) will be followed. The Appeals ~~Board~~ **Hearing Officer** shall have access to all confidential records pertaining to a specific case which is before ~~them~~ **him/her**.

C. TIMELINESS DEFENSES

Grievance procedures not initiated, and carried forward **by the aggrieved employee**, within the time limits established in this section, shall render the grievance null and void; that is the grievance is to be considered not to have existed.

Any grievance not taken to the next step of the grievance procedure **by the aggrieved employee** shall be considered settled on the basis of the last reply made and received in accordance with the provisions of this section.

The time limits prescribed in this section for the initiation and completion of the steps of the grievance procedure may be extended by mutual consent of the parties involved.

Finally, the grievance procedure is designed to assure the aggrieved employee(s) of protection from any form of reprisal by supervisors, or any other City official, following proper determination and decision on the grievance.

XIX. MISCELLANEOUS POLICIES

A. DEATH PAYMENT

Salary and accrued annual leave shall, upon an employee's death, be issued in his/her name but be delivered to such beneficiary as is designated by the employee, or if none is designated, then to his/her estate.

B. USE OF CITY VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT

1. Only authorized employees with the appropriate valid driver's license and in-house training for that particular type vehicle or piece of equipment may drive the city vehicle or use the equipment.
2. No city employee will knowingly allow the illegal or unauthorized use of any city vehicle or equipment.
3. ~~Smoking~~ Use of tobacco, in any form, e-cigarettes or other similar products is prohibited within vehicles and while using or operating equipment.
4. Employees assigned a vehicle will keep it cleaned up.
5. Employees shall obey all traffic laws.
6. Seatbelts must be worn in all moving vehicles thus equipped.
7. Employees will follow the City's ~~Mobile Device~~ Cellular Phone Policy.
8. No alcoholic beverages or illicit drugs shall be carried in a city-owned vehicle except as required evidence by law enforcement.

C. ELECTRONIC MAIL AND COMPUTER SYSTEMS

It is the intent of Clinton City that the electronic mail (e-mail) and computer systems be used for City purposes. Employees should be aware of the potential for discovery of stored E-mail communications, including the use of such messages for litigation against the City. Employees shall NOT use E-mail or computer systems for any inappropriate use, including but not limited to the following:

1. Solicitation of employees for fund raisers not approved by the City;
2. To further personal business interest;
3. Offensive, harassing, vulgar, obscene, or threatening communication, including disparagement of others based on race, national origin, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, pregnancy, religious or political beliefs, or any other characteristic protected under federal, state, or local law.
4. Verbal abuse, slander or defamation;
5. Creating, distributing, or soliciting sexually oriented messages or images;
6. Electronic dissemination or printing of copyrighted materials, including articles and software, in violation of copyright laws.

Employees shall not access or attempt to access the E-mail system of another user unless directed and authorized by the department director. E-mail communications and the contents of City-owned computers are the sole property of Clinton City and may be subject to monitoring without notice. The City may override individual passwords and codes and require employees to disclose individual passwords and codes. Abuses of the E-mail and computer systems could subject the employee to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Employees with responsibilities to the City's social media sites must familiarize and follow the City's Social Media Policy.

D. CELLULAR TELEPHONES

Clinton City recognizes that there is value and benefit to convenient cell phone communications by and between certain designated city positions and that this most effectively meets the needs of the City.

The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures and guidelines wherein ~~department directors~~ **the City Manager may authorize:**

1. ~~Provide~~ **The assignment of** City owned cell phones to employees who are required to use a cell phone on the job; ~~and/or,~~
2. ~~Instruct employees to submit for reimbursement when using their own cell phone for authorized City business; and/or,~~
3. Designate employees, **if any**, who will be refunded, ~~by the City,~~ for regular use of their ~~own~~ **personal** cell phone for authorized City business at a monthly rate based on the cost to the City for providing a phone; and,
4. Ensure accountability for City ~~property; and~~ **owned cell phones.**
5. ~~Department directors must designate the positions which require the use of cell phones and which options above best meet the needs of the City.~~

City Owned Cell Phones

~~Department directors~~ **The City Manager** may authorize the ~~purchase of cell phone(s), accessories, and plan(s) for city use~~ **the use of city cell phones** ~~by~~ **for** designated positions that best meet the needs of the City. City owned cell phones shall be for City business, however minimal personal calls may be allowed with no reimbursement required as long as there are adequate minutes available for City business and the minutes used are within the allotted minutes for the plan. If minutes used exceed those allotted by the plan due to personal use, the employee is required to reimburse the City for the cost of the overage.

City owned cell phones should be used by City employees ~~or~~ **and** for City purposes, and not by family, friends, or others except in case of an extreme emergency.

Reimbursement

~~Employees using their personal cellular telephone for City business may seek reimbursement by submitting a copy of their telephone bill along with a brief explanation as to the reason for each call to the department director. Only those documented calls deemed necessary by the department director will be reimbursed. On approval by the department director the request shall be forwarded to Finance for payment.~~

Refund

~~Department directors, at~~ **At** an employee's request, ~~may designate employees and for~~ **in** a position that ~~is~~ **has been** determined to require a City provided cell phone, ~~to regularly~~ **the potential of** use of their personal cellular phone for City business rather than assigning a City owned cell phone ~~may be available.~~ **The City Manager will determine the appropriateness of that use and** ~~Employees requesting this will be refunded an amount designated by the City Manager~~ **the amount of reimbursement** based upon ~~what it would have cost the cost to the City for providing~~ **to provide and maintain** a cell phone.

Replacement of City Owned Cell Phones

Department directors will evaluate requests by employees for replacement phones and submit requests and purchase authorizations, on forms provided by the Treasurer department to the City Manager. Directors will evaluate the condition under which the phone is needed to be replaced and determine if it is the employee's responsibility for the need or if it is normal wear and tear or defect.

Accessories

All accessories required for City owned cell phones will be provided by the individual departments.

Cell Phone Use While Driving

Employees are not allowed to use their cell phone (either City issued phones or personal phones) **while**

driving on City business unless a hands-free device is used. Even when using a hands-free device, conducting City or personal business on a cell phone while driving should be kept to a minimum and only done when necessary. This section does not apply to an employee using a cell phone without a hands-free device for emergency purposes (such as calling 911) while driving on City business.

Sworn police and fire personnel using a cell phone in the course and scope of their duties without a hands-free device while driving an emergency vehicle shall make every reasonable effort to safely stop the emergency vehicle before using the cell phone, unless a matter of operational urgency exists. If operational urgency does exist, sworn police or fire personnel shall keep the conversation as short as possible, or bring the vehicle to a safe stop to complete the conversation.

Under no circumstances shall employees send or read text messages or emails while driving a vehicle on City business.

E. PERSONAL USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY

1. The City authorizes limited personal use of City property by City employees if such use is de minimus, incidental, properly authorized by Dept Director or City Manager and satisfies each of the following criteria:

a. The employee is authorized to use or possess the public property to fulfill job duties; and,

b. The primary purpose of the use or possession of the public property by the employee is to fulfill job duties; and,

c. Use or possession of the property by the employee imposes little or no cost to the City; and,

d. Any use of this property is limited in scope and duration and does not interfere with the use of the property for City business; and,

e. Use of the property does not disrupt the performance of the employee's official duties; and,

f. Use of the property does not create a new risk of liability or harm to the City.

XX. SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

The City has the responsibility and a commitment to all its employees to provide a healthy and safe work place and environment.

Employees of the City have the responsibility to arrive at work free from the effects of controlled substances, alcohol and other job-impairing substances. These joint responsibilities result in the objective of establishing a work environment where all employees are free from the effects of controlled substances, alcohol and other job-impairing substances.

The City recognizes that chemical dependency and/or alcohol related problems are treatable conditions and offers referral to "The Medical Benefits Program" for employees seeking counseling and treatment. The existence of controlled substance dependency or alcohol related problems does not waive the employee's responsibility to comply with City employment policies. The City adopts a "zero tolerance" policy of an employee "being ~~under the influence~~ **impaired and unfit for duty**" upon arriving at work, or at any other time during the work schedule. Violation of this policy may result in termination of employment, as outlined in this policy.

A. PURPOSE

Controlled substance and/or alcohol use lead to more accidents on the job, lower job performance, lost productivity, increased absenteeism, higher medical costs, and rising thefts. Impaired employees on the job are potentially dangerous to themselves and could jeopardize the health, life or safety of fellow employees and the public. While the City has no intention of intruding into the private lives of its employees, it does require them to report for work in fit condition to perform their duties in a safe manner and while at work to remain in that fit condition.

B. PROGRAM

The City prohibits the use, possession and/or distribution on its premises, facilities and/or work places of any of the following: alcoholic beverages, intoxicants and narcotics, illegal or unauthorized controlled substances (including marijuana), and related drug paraphernalia. In addition, a City employee will not be allowed to report for work under the influence of any controlled substance, alcoholic beverage, intoxicant or narcotic or other substance, including legally prescribed drugs and medicines which will in any way adversely affect his or her working ability, alertness, coordination, response, or adversely affect the safety of others on the job.

Such use, possession, distribution, or impairment during working hours (breaks and lunches included) and/or on City premises will be grounds for termination. All drug testing and results obtained under the requirements of this policy will be coordinated with and authorized by the City Manager or his/her designee. All such activities will be kept confidential.

Any arrests and/or convictions occurring to an employee while employed by the City, pertaining to a criminal alcohol or drug statute, must be **timely** reported to the Department Director and City Manager.

C. TRAINING OF EMPLOYEES

Prior to implementation of this substance abuse and drug free workplace program, the City shall conduct substance abuse training for all employees. All training shall take place during normal work hours, or immediately before or after scheduled shifts, on City paid time.

D. VOLUNTARY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE AND/OR ALCOHOL REHABILITATION

Employees who have a controlled substance or alcohol use problem, or questions/concerns on the subject, are encouraged to discuss these matters with their Dept Head or the City Manager. If appropriate, employees may be referred to a counseling and/or rehabilitation service.

Effective treatment requires that the employee acknowledge the seriousness of the problem and make a commitment to a plan for rehabilitation. Such an employee will be allowed a leave of absence of reasonable length, for professional rehabilitation. During this leave of absence, the employee may use a one time only use of up to 30 days of accrued sick leave (not applicable if voluntary rehabilitation reoccurs). Accrued comp time or vacation leave may also be used for any additional leave of absence. If the rehabilitation period extends past these paid leave benefit periods, only leave without pay (with medical benefits continuing) shall be available. Such admission will not be used as a basis for disciplinary action and will not be used against the employee in any disciplinary proceeding unless the employee has been found to be “~~under the influence~~ **impaired and unfit for duty**” on the job. Such admission shall not be a defense to the imposition of disciplinary action based on breaches of the City's personnel policies not related to controlled substances or alcohol.

Prior to returning to duty after a voluntary rehabilitation program, the employee shall submit to a drug/alcohol test. Failure to pass the test shall result in termination of employment.

E. *MEDICALLY AUTHORIZED DRUGS*

Each employee must report the use of medically authorized drugs or other substances which might impair job performance to the City Manager and provide proper written medical authorization from a physician/dentist to work while using prescription drugs. It is the employee's responsibility to determine whether or not the prescribed drug would impair his or her job performance. The City Manager shall decide if and under what conditions such an employee may remain at their work station. Any failure to report the use of such drugs or other substances, or failure to provide proper evidence of medical authorization, may result in disciplinary action.

F. *DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING*

Clinton City employees shall participate in the following types of drug and alcohol testing programs as directed:

1. Pre-employment Drug/Alcohol Test

Clinton City requires that as part of a conditional offer of employment, a prospective employee for any regular full-time or regular part-time position and temporary “safety sensitive” employee, must undergo an alcohol and drug screen test to detect the presence of alcohol and/or controlled substances in the body (excluding legally obtained and used substances pursuant to a physicians prescription). Refusal to take such a test shall be grounds for denial of employment. An applicant who tests positive for controlled substances or whose test detects a BAC of 0.02 or higher shall be denied employment with the City.

2. Post Accident Drug Testing

Employees involved in accidents as defined in “I” below, whether injured or not, shall be tested for substance abuse and alcohol. Substance abuse tests must be performed within 8 hours after the accident. Alcohol tests must be performed within 3 hours after the accident. Any employee required to be drug tested under this policy shall submit immediately to such test when directed to do so by their supervisor, Department Director or City Manager (or designee). If the employee refuses to submit to such testing or conducts him/herself, during the testing, in such a way as to induce a false, incorrect or invalid result, he/she shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

~~3. Pre-promotion or Transfer~~

~~Prior to promotion or transfer, employees must pass an alcohol and drug test.~~

4. Reasonable Suspicion

The City reserves the right to require any employee to submit to a “fitness for duty” drug and/or alcohol examination with a city-referred physician or substance abuse professional when there is reasonable suspicion that the employee is working under the influence of alcohol and/or drugs. Such examinations shall be conducted on City time and at City expense.

Factors which may constitute reasonable suspicion include, but are not limited to: slurred speech; red eyes; dilated pupils; incoherence, unsteadiness of feet; smell of alcohol, marijuana or other controlled substance emanating from

the employee's person; inability to carry on a rational conversation; erratic behavior; and other unexplained behavioral changes. When practical, a supervisor should seek confirmation of his observations by another employee or supervisor. Findings shall be immediately passed on to the appropriate administrator for approval of drug testing. All findings shall be documented.

5. Random Testing

Commercial Drivers License (CDL) holders and employees in "safety sensitive" positions shall be obligated to participate in random drug and/or alcohol testing. CDL holders shall follow the procedures outlined in Chapter XXI. All other non-CDL safety sensitive positions shall be pooled separately for random testing selection with a testing frequency of 15% to 20% drug/alcohol testing per year.

G. DEFINITIONS

Accident (Non-Vehicular)

Where an employee sustains an on-the-job injury that results in professional medical care, **alcohol/drug** testing is mandatory; ~~or, if~~ in the opinion of the Department Director with the concurrence of the City Manager or his designee, there is reasonable suspicion that it could be related to drug or alcohol use.

Accident (Vehicular)

An occurrence associated with the operation of a motor vehicle or other motorized equipment, if, as a result:

1. A death occurs; or,
2. An individual suffers bodily injury that requires medical treatment away from the scene of the accident; or,
3. One or more of the vehicles involved incurs disabling damage as a result of the occurrence and is transported away from the scene by a tow truck or another vehicle; or,
4. The employee receives a citation under state or local law for a moving traffic violation; or,
5. In the opinion of the Department Director, with the concurrence of the City Manager or his designee, the employee driver contributed to the accident and there is reasonable suspicion that it could be related to drug or alcohol use.

Alcohol

Alcohol is defined as the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol or other low molecular weight alcohols including methyl and isopropyl alcohol.

Controlled Substances

Controlled substances are defined by state statute (Utah Code 58-37-4).

Controlled Substance/Alcohol Testing

The scientific analysis for the presence of drugs or their metabolites in the human body. Normally this analysis is performed from a urine, blood, saliva, hair or breath specimen provided by the employee.

Under the Influence **Impaired and Unfit for Duty**

When an employee tests positive for any of the above mentioned controlled substances, or whose test detects a Blood Alcohol Content (BAC) of 0.02 or greater, he/she shall be deemed ~~under the influence~~ **to be impaired and unfit for duty.**

Positive Test

Any test result showing a blood alcohol content of 0.02 or greater, or the presence of any controlled substance in the test subject.

Pre-Employment Testing

All prospective regular employees and temporary "safety sensitive" employees are to be tested as a condition of employment. Prospective employees who refuse or whose test is positive will be **denied employment.**

Random Testing

This is a method of selecting employees for drug and/or alcohol testing that results in an equal probability that any employee in that testing pool will be selected each time a random test is conducted. Random tests shall be unannounced throughout the year.

Reasonable Suspicion

This is defined as specific observations made by a trained supervisor or police officer of behaviors, appearances and actions that are characteristic of the use or abuse of alcohol and/or controlled substances.

In cases involving an accident that results in physical injury or property damage, which occurs during the employee's scheduled work shift, or while engaged in City business, and when such accident cannot otherwise be reasonably explained, reasonable suspicion is deemed to exist.

Safety Sensitive Positions

Positions occupying a high level of public trust as classified by job description, duties or the possession of equipment or property capable of endangering other employees or the public. These regular employee positions include: police officers; firefighters; public works workers; building inspectors; any other City equipment and vehicle operators; and, any other City workers so designated by the City Manager.

XXI. CDL'S - MANDATED DRUG TESTING

The Omnibus Transportation Employees Testing Act of 1991 (the ACT) requires mandatory drug and alcohol testing to prevent accidents and injuries resulting from the use of alcohol or use of controlled substances by employees working in safety sensitive positions. On February 15, 1994 the Federal Department of Transportation issued updated rules that applied the ACT to every person who is subject to commercial driver's license requirements, including local government employees. For small employers like Clinton City, the testing program must begin by January 1, 1996.

A. PROHIBITIONS

1. Alcohol

No Clinton City employee shall knowingly be allowed to drive a City vehicle while under the influence of alcohol. (See definitions on previous pages.) CDL drivers shall not:

- a. report for or remain on duty while having a blood alcohol content of 0.02 or greater;
- b. operate a commercial motor vehicle while in possession of alcohol;
- c. use alcohol while performing safety sensitive functions;
- d. perform safety sensitive functions within four (4) hours after consuming alcohol;
- e. consume alcohol for eight (8) hours following an accident requiring a post accident test, or until the employee undergoes a post accident test, whichever comes first; or,
- f. refuse to submit to a test required under the act.

2. Controlled Substances

The City shall not allow a CDL driver, nor shall a CDL driver:

- a. report for duty or remain on duty when the driver uses controlled substance(s), except when the use is pursuant to the instructions of a physician who has advised the driver that the substance does not adversely affect the driver's ability to safely operate a commercial motor vehicle, and has informed his/her supervisor of such and been cleared for duty as outlined in Chapter XX section F of this policy.
 - b. report for duty, remain on duty or perform safety sensitive functions if the driver tests positive for controlled substances.
3. Employees using, possessing or being at the workplace with a BAC content of 0.02 or greater or under the influence of illegal or illegally obtained substances shall be subject to testing, questioning and disciplinary action. Any employee found to have violated this policy shall be processed in accordance to Section B.2 of

this Chapter, as is outlined, for the amount of BAC and/or the controlled substance.

B. TESTING

1. General ----Under rules established under the ACT, the City is required to conduct the following alcohol/drug testing for CDL drivers:
 - a. pre-employment;
 - b. reasonable suspicion;
 - c. random;
 - d. post accident;
 - e. return-to-duty and follow-up.

Clinton City maintains the right to designate the type of sample to be used in the testing program, including blood, urine, or other tests, and the use of electronic detection equipment. Trained animals may be used for locating controlled substances. The City will bear the costs of all collection, transportation and analysis. All drug screen collections, medical review officer reviews and laboratory testing of urine drug specimens shall be in compliance with the Federal Register, 49 CFR part 40-procedures for transportation workplace drug and alcohol testing programs, subpart B-Drug Testing.

Collection of the test sample will be done by trained employees of a substance abuse consulting agency during or immediately after regular work hours.

Failure of affected employees to cooperate with these sample collection and detection methods or inspections, is grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Designated supervisors have received special training and classes to help them recognize employees who may be under the influence. It is their responsibilities to daily visually check their employees. When a designated supervisor makes a determination that there is reasonable suspicion that an employee performing or about to perform a safety sensitive function is under the influence, using, or in possession of alcohol or controlled substances, the employee shall be subject to alcohol/drug testing.

All city employees also have the responsibility to bring to a designated supervisor's attention all suspicions of any impairment due to drugs or alcohol in other city employees.

The City may join a consortium in order to broaden the employee testing pool, provide the required random testing (25% of drivers for alcohol and 50% of drivers for drug testing annually), and other testing.

2. Test Results ---- Blood Alcohol Content Testing

If an employee's test result shows a BAC content of 0.04~~2~~ or greater, the employee shall be removed from work with pay, be given a "due process interview" and disciplined pursuant to this policy.

If an employee's test result shows an alcohol concentration of ~~greater than 0.02~~ **or greater** but less than 0.04, the employee shall not be permitted to perform any safety sensitive functions for at least twenty four (24) hours. The employee shall be dismissed from work for the day, without pay, and re-tested upon return to work the following day. ~~If the re-test results again show an alcohol concentration of greater than 0.02 but less than 0.04, the employee shall be suspended without pay for three (3) working days, and re-tested again upon return to work. If the second re-test produces the same result of an alcohol concentration of greater than 0.02 and less than 0.04, the employee shall be sent home from work without pay, provided a "due process interview" and terminated from City employment.~~

Equally, if an employee's test results show that the employee has used a controlled substance, the employee must be sent home from work without pay, provided a "due process interview" and ~~disciplined pursuant to this policy.~~ terminated from City employment.

C. EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

1. All test results will be kept confidential and will be available only to the employee, the City Manager, the City Finance Specialist or Manager, the Mayor and City Council, the City Attorney and the ~~Appeals Board~~ **Appeals Hearing Officer**, if **an appeal is requested.** ~~convened.~~ The employee may authorize his/her representative to have copies of the test results, provided the employee waives in writing all claims against

the City for disclosing such information to the employee's representative.

2. Any employee who tests positive and is terminated by the City based upon test results can request and will receive from the City all written documentation available from the testing laboratory which verifies the accuracy of the equipment, the qualifications of lab personnel, the chain of custody of the specimen, and the accuracy rate of the laboratory.

XXII. SAVING CLAUSE

Should any portion of this Policy Manual be rendered ineffective by a Court of Competent Jurisdiction, the remaining parts shall remain in full force and effect. The City Council may alter these policies at any time, following proper notice and public hearing thereon, including rectifying any portion as necessary to accommodate changes in applicable statute and regulation.

XXIII. ADOPTION OF POLICIES

The policies and rules contained herein were originally adopted by the Clinton City Council on February 25, 1997 and later modified by the Clinton City Council on August 8, 2000, September 28, 2004, November 10, 2009, December 11, 2012, **October 28, 2014, __ 2015 __, 2016, ____, 2017 and ____ 2019.** All prior policies, rules and practices, previously adopted by the City Council are hereby simultaneously superseded.



**SPECIAL CLINTON CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
CITY HALL
2267 North 1500 W Clinton UT 84015**

**MAYOR
L. Mitch Adams**

**CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS
Anna Stanton
Karen Peterson
Mike Petersen
Barbara Patterson
TJ Mitchell**

Date of Meeting	August 27, 2019	7:00 PM	Called to Order: 7:00 p.m.
Staff Present	City Manager Dennis Cluff, Community Development Director Valerie Claussen, Assistant Public Works Director Dave Williams, Lt. Shawn Stoker, Recreation Director Bruce Logan and Lisa Titensor recorded the minutes.		
Citizens Present	Blake Stratton, Dereck Bauer, Chase Freebairn, Josh Lynch, Brent & Judy Cook		
Pledge of Allegiance	Councilmember Barbara Patterson		
Prayer or Thought	Councilmember TJ Mitchell		
Roll Call & Attendance	Present were: Mayor Adams, Councilmember TJ Mitchell, Councilmember Anna Stanton and Councilmember Barbara Patterson and Councilmember Karen Peterson Excused were: Councilmember Mike Petersen		
Public Input	<p>Lt. Shawn Stoker addressed car burglaries with the Council. He explained incidents have increased significantly over last year. There were a few nights that multiple homes were hit. No arrests have been made as of yet. The incidents are taking place in all areas of the City. It appears to be a crime of opportunity where garage doors are left open, few are forced entry. These crimes are generally under reported. The Police would like individuals to speak up. There has also been an increase in criminal mischief and property damage incidents.</p> <p>The Police Department encourages proactive patrol and officers being out in the community when they are not responding to specific calls. This includes visiting parks and trails.</p> <p>The Police Department appreciates the support of the Council and their willingness to accommodate their needs with equipment and resources.</p> <p>The Council expressed a desire to continue their support of the Police and they also expressed appreciation for the extra effort the officers are making to keep the community safe.</p>		
A. <u>RESOLUTION 14-19 - REQUEST BY IVORY DEVELOPMENT FOR FINAL PLAT APPROVAL OF CRANEFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION PHASE 10, (LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 3370 WEST 2350 NORTH PARCEL NO. 13-047-0061).</u>			
Petitioner	Ivory Development, Chase Freebairn Submitted by Valerie Claussen		
Discussion	Cranefield Phase 10 Final Plat was originally approved October 23, 2018; however, Ivory Homes decided not to move forward with that layout due to a housing product change, and the plat was never recorded.		

	<p>The applicant has re-submitted and received City department review for what has been referred to as Cranefield Estates Phase 10 (Revised). The subdivision proposes four more lots than the previous design. The new proposal meets the City’s development and zoning standards. The increase in lots also does not exceed the overall density or lot count permitted under the Cranefield Estates PRUD and Development Agreement. The Planning Commission recommended approval of the final plat on August 20, 2019 with the following:</p> <p>CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: (1) The address for Lot 232 will be revised to be 2403 North 3370 West (2) Final Plat approval is subject to review and approval by Davis-Weber County Canal Companies (DWCCC).</p>
<p>CONCLUSION</p>	<p>Councilmember Mitchell moved to adopt Resolution 14-19 approving The Cranefield Estates Phase 10 (Revised) Final Plat with the condition identified. Councilmember K. Peterson seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember Mitchell, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember K. Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye</p>
<p>B. <u>RESOLUTION 15-19 - REQUEST FOR FINAL PLAT APPROVAL OF HEPWORTH HOMESTEAD SUBDIVISION (LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 2298 W 1300 N PARCEL NO. 14-021-0019).</u></p>	
<p>Petitioner</p>	<p>Josh Lynch, Woodmere homes Submitted by Valerie Claussen, Community Development</p>
<p>Discussion</p>	<p>The Hepworth Homestead Final Plat is consistent with the previously approved preliminary plat. The proposal meets the City’s development and zoning standards of the R1-9 zone. The subdivision is proposed to be constructed in one phase. The home that is currently on the site will be demolished. The development does not propose to have an HOA, nor are there common elements or maintenance that would require one to be established. A low maintenance material (e.g. pavers, concrete) for the park strip has been proposed and approved. No vehicular access will be permitted for the lots backing 1300 North; however, it should be noted that snow removal of the abutting 1300 North sidewalk and the maintenance of landscaping will be those property owners’ responsibility. This note has been included on the plat. Fencing along 1300 North will be installed by the developer and will include access gates for the properties for the required maintenance.</p> <p>The Planning Commission recommended approval at their August 20, 2019 meeting. Staff recommends an additional condition of approval regarding recordation of a maintenance notice on the lots that abut 1300 North that will be responsible for maintaining the snow removal and park strip landscaping along the rear of their properties. This notice will be recorded at the same time the Final Plat is recorded.</p> <p>CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: (1) Final Plat approval is subject to review and approval by the Ditch Company, including a letter from the president, and submitting to the City any redlined plans with any changes required by the Ditch Company. (2) Recordation of a Notice of Perpetual Maintenance on Lots 8R, 9R, 10R and 11R shall occur at time of Final Plat recordation.</p> <p>Joanne Parker asked if there will be a street coming out onto 1300 N and if the new fence will abut the existing fence. Who will be responsible to maintain the park strip.</p> <p>The Council responded there will not be a street continued onto 1300 N. The homeowners will be responsible to keep up the park strip. There will be an offset in the fence from the Lexington Estate fence line.</p>

	<p>The Council expressed concern about the farthest western lot which has only 4’ of rear yard frontage.</p> <p>Josh Lynch with Woodmere Homes stated he will look to see if it is possible to eliminate the 4’ and still fit the home, but frontage is tight.</p> <p>Councilmember K. Peterson asked if a low maintenance attractive material can be used in the park strip.</p> <p>Mr. Lynch responded he intends to place river rock in the park strip.</p> <p>The Council asked him to consider an alternative material.</p>
CONCLUSION	<p>Councilmember Stanton moved to adopt Resolution 15-19 approving the Hepworth Homestead Final Plat with the conditions identified. Councilmember Mitchell seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember Mitchell, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember K. Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye.</p>
<p>C. <u>RESOLUTION 16-19</u> - PLAT AMENDMENT TO LOT 203 AND PARCEL A OF THE STONEGATE SUBDIVISION, PHASE 2 (LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 2103 N 3430 WEST) FOR THE PURPOSES OF COMBINING THE TWO PARCELS. (PARCEL NOS. 14-531-0203 AND 14-531-0210).</p>	
Petitioner	<p>Val Claussen, Community Development</p>
Discussion	<p>Parcel “A” was platted and dedicated to the City in the Stonegate Subdivision Phase 2, in anticipation that a walkway would go through to Cranefield Phase 11 (abutting property to the west). This 12 foot walkway would be over a portion of the 20 foot North Davis Sewer District Easement; however, with the changes in how Cranefield is developing and how Stonegate has developed, the 12 foot “path” no longer serves a purpose or provides the connectivity it once thought it would. Layout for adjacent Cranefield phases have had to evolve and a path at this location in Stonegate provides no more of a direct route for points of interest to the west (e.g. future school site) than taking 3430 North up toward 2300 North. As the developer still owns the lot to the north (Lot 203) of Parcel “A”, this amended plat combines parcel A (0.08 AC) and Lot 203 into a single parcel, and removing what otherwise becomes an orphan strip parcel, which would have required the City’s perpetual maintenance. After discussions with the City Attorney, this course of action was recommended, as the parcel was created and dedicated to the City by the developer through a plat, that returning the parcel to the developer (by combining the parcels) and amending the plat is most appropriate. In addition, this process is consistent with applicable provisions of the City Code.</p> <p>Mayor Adams clarified the district easement will stay intact but the City will not own the property.</p>
CONCLUSION	<p>Councilmember K. Peterson moved to adopt Resolution 16-19 approving the Stonegate Phase 2 Amended Plat. Councilmember Mitchell seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember Mitchell, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember K. Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye</p>
<p>D. FINAL ACCEPTANCE - PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AT CLUBVIEW AT CRANEFIELD PHASE 2.</p>	
Petitioner	<p>Val Claussen, Community Development and Mike Child, Public Works</p>
Discussion	<p>Public Works Director Dave Williams confirmed Clubview at Cranefield Phase 2 has completed the warranty period. The developer has requested Final Acceptance of the public improvements for this subdivision. Public Works has inspected the improvements and recommend the release of remaining escrow funds held in escrow.</p>
CONCLUSION	<p>Councilmember Patterson moved to approve the final acceptance of Clubview at Cranefield subdivision improvements, and authorize the release of the remaining funds held in escrow. Councilmember Mitchell seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember Mitchell, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember K.</p>

	Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye.
E. <u>PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 19-04Z</u> TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE CLINTON CITY ZONING ORDINANCE REGARDING MODIFICATIONS TO STANDARDS ASSOCIATED WITH SMALL YARD SHEDS IN THE AGRICULTURAL, RESIDENTIAL AND PATIO HOME ZONING DISTRICTS. (CONTINUED FROM AUGUST 13, 2019)	
Petitioner	Valerie Claussen, Community Development
Discussion	<p>Ms. Claussen reviewed the proposed changes included in the staff report.</p> <p>(A) This item was continued from the August 13, 2019 Council meeting after discussion was held on modifying the wording of a paragraph in Chapter 3 regarding easements and questions regarding the impervious surface calculations.</p> <p>(B) The Chapter 3 paragraph was brought back to Staff and was revised to read more consistently and make sure the reference to easements were all encompassing.</p> <p>(C) The Impervious Surface changes that are included in this amendment are the following:</p> <p>(i) A paragraph in Chapter 3 that is causing contradiction in other sections and provisions of the Code.</p> <p>(ii) Updating A-1 and A-E to calculate the accessory building lot coverage ratio on the entire gross area and not the “building lot area” as this is not a standard practice. For A-E that percentage was increased to 15%. See the attached commentary on more description for this change.</p> <p>(iii) Changes to the R1-X zones are adding the words Rear Yard to Table 14.3 and revising the foot note so that there is reference to Chapter 2 for key definitions.</p> <p>Additional changes are anticipated to be needed for impervious surfaces and will be brought forward at a later date.</p> <p>Mayor Adams re-opened the public hearing.</p> <p>Brent Cook stated he has one of the largest lots in a patio home development. He would like to have a shed on the east side of his lot.</p> <p>Mayor Adams closed the public hearing.</p>
CONCLUSION	Councilmember Mitchell moved to adopt Ordinance 19-04Z and approve the text amendments to the Clinton City Zoning Ordinance regarding modifications to standards associated with small yard sheds in the agricultural, residential and patio home zone districts. Councilmember K. Peterson seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember Mitchell, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember K. Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye.
F. CHANGE ORDER 4 WITH THURGOOD EXCAVATING FOR WATER LINE EXTENSION	
Petitioner	Dennis Cluff, David Williams
Discussion	<p>Public Works Asst. Director Dave Williams explained the current contract with Thurgood excavating has them installing the water line on 2200 North from 730 West to the edge of the existing asphalt (about 715 West) and connecting on to the existing line. The storm drain will be run from 730 W to the eastside of 700 W. The original plan was to patch the storm drain trench and extend the waterline and redo the road at a later date. Staff would like to modify this project. The existing water line on 2200 West needs to be replaced from the tank site (approx. 715 West) to the west side of 630 West with a 12” main. This is shown as phase 4 on the attached drawing. The roadway is in poor condition and we would like to finish the work on 2200 West now. At a minimum we would like to replace the waterline to the east side of 700 West to match the limits of the storm drain project. We would then replace all the asphalt in the road rather than just patch the storm drain trench. Going to the east side of 700 West leaves about 250 feet of waterline to 630 West that would need to be replaced prior to the well being constructed.</p>

	<p>The approximate cost for this additional work is \$36,610. (\$28,110 from the Water impact fee and \$8,500 from the Storm Drain impact fee.)</p> <p>Mr. Cluff explained with a contractor on site, this will reduce the cost of the project significantly rather than starting a new project in a year or two.</p>
CONCLUSION	Councilmember Mitchell moved to approve Change Order #4 with Thurgood Excavating for a Water Line Extension for \$36,610. Councilmember Patterson seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember Mitchell, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember K. Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye.
G. CHANGE ORDER 1 WITH ADVANCED PAVING AND CONSTRUCTION	
Petitioner	Dennis Cluff, David Williams
Discussion	Advanced Paving currently has the City's contract for the 2019 Street Reconstruction Projects. This change order will direct them to also reconstruct and pave 2200 North from 715 West to 630 West. This work can be funded from \$24,348 of Water impact fees and \$7,500 from the streets reconstruction funds.
CONCLUSION	Councilmember Mitchell moved to approve Change Order #1 with Advanced Paving and Construction for \$31,848. Councilmember K. Peterson seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember Mitchell, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember K. Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye.
Approval of Minutes	Councilmember K. Peterson moved to approve the minutes of the August 13, 2019 City Council Meeting. Councilmember Stanton seconded the motion. Councilmember's Mitchell, Stanton, Patterson, and K Peterson voted in favor of the motion.
Accounts Payable	Councilmember Stanton moved to pay the bills. Councilmember Patterson seconded the motion. Councilmembers Mitchell, Stanton, K Peterson and Patterson voted in favor of the motion.
Planning Commission Report	<p>Ms. Claussen reported on the August 20, 2019 Planning Commission as recorded in the minutes.</p> <p>The Moderate Income Housing Plan is due in December.</p>
City Manager	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> September 2, 2019 is the Labor Day Holiday and the City Offices will be closed. There will be an employee cookout on September 11 at 11:30 a.m.
Mayor Adams	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Mayor Adams asked for an update on the CRA. <p>Mr. Cluff responded the leakage study is being evaluated.</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Attended a meeting on the ground water sampling. The EPA is discussing making air sampling in homes located in the vicinity of the groundwater contamination mandatory.
Councilmember Patterson	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> The Davis County Children's Justice Center appreciates the donation from Clinton City. Expressed appreciation to Community Development for the updated project list.
Councilmember K. Peterson	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> The Arts Council will host a dance on September 13. The Back to School Movie was a great success. The Veteran's Memorial is almost complete.
Councilmember M. Petersen	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Excused.
Councilmember Mitchell	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Expressed appreciation to Community Development for the good work on the subdivision ordinance.
Councilmember Stanton	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> There will be 26 members of the Youth Council for 2019-20. The leaders are doing a great job. Asked for street lights to be maintained to help deter crime.

ADJOURNMENT	Councilmember K. Peterson moved to adjourn. Councilmember Patterson seconded the motion. Councilmembers Mitchell, Patterson, Stanton and K. Peterson voted in favor of the motion. The meeting adjourned at 8:24 p.m.
<u>ACTION ITEMS</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Subdivision Ordinance – recommendation for concrete in the park strips along UDOT roads. (August 2016) – Planning Commission Review • Bring back Chapter 4 of the Subdivision Ordinance regarding allowing a letter of credit for escrow and researching what surrounding jurisdictions allow (26-4-8). 6g(January 2017) Planning Commission Review • Update Ordinance to eliminate pressurized sewer lines in the Clinton City streets on new residential development (January 2018). • Create a facilities maintenance plan before the next budget cycle in FY 19-20 (May 2018). • Pickle Ball Courts at Meadows Park (applying for grant in January) (Oct 2018). • Add a City Policy that clarifies personal vehicle allowance usage. (July 2019). • Remove river rock from the low maintenance material allowed for park strips in the ordinance (Aug 2019).

Dennis W. Cluff, Clinton City Recorder